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Digia in brief
Digia possesses a unique blend of expertise in enterprise systems, mobile devices, usability and web application
design. The company offers its customers a fast lane towards the internet-based information processing of the new
decade. Whether web services, core business systems or mobile applications are in question, through modern
information technology and its inventive solutions, customers gain access to improved services, more efficient
operations or increased sales.
Digia’s core business areas are enterprise solutions and mobile solutions. The company’s strategy is focused on its
own and third-party products, services, strong competencies and top-quality project management. All of these are
combined to ensure the fulfillment of customers’ needs, whatever the development project.
Digia employs nearly 1,500 experts in Finland, Sweden, Russia and China. The company is listed on the NASDAQ
OMX Helsinki exchange (DIG1V). www.digia.com
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Releases
available

January
Digia is the first company in Finland to attain Implementation and Support
certified status for Microsoft's Field Services for Microsoft Dynamics AX industry
solution.

February

 Stock

exchange
releases
 Press
releases

Digia delivered a Digia Financial Systems investments and banking solution for
Sofia Bank. The delivery also included solutions for managing bank accounts and
loans. The comprehensive Back Office system for brokerage and banking was
delivered by Digia within four months. The supply included interfaces to all
necessary internal systems and the systems of external parties, used by brokers.

March
At the General Meeting, Pekka Sivonen, Kari Karvinen, Heikki Mäkijärvi, Jari
Pasanen, Pertti Kyttälä and Martti Mehtälä were elected onto the Board of
Directors. At the Organising Meeting held after the General Meeting, Pekka
Sivonen was elected as full-time Chairman of the Board and Pertti Kyttälä was
elected as Vice Chairman of the Board.
Jyrki Hallikainen has informed Digia that he controls 2,134,463 shares of Digia,
corresponding to 10.04% of Digia's shares and votes.

April
Digia annouced the availability of two new mobile applications for Nokia Maemo
devices. Digia@scene and @Web lead the way in making applications for Maemo
with the verstile Qt application framework. Digia @Web is a modern, fully finger
touch controllable web browser for mobile. Digia @scene is a highly optimized
application for superior consumption and contribution of video content of
YouTube.
Digia modernised national traffic license data system. The project by Digia and
the Ministry of Transport and Communications, is part of a more extensive multiyear development programme based on the new public transport act, currently
under preparation in the Parliament, and the EU's proposal for a regulation on
public passenger transport services, entering into force in Finland.

June
Digia announced the availability of Symbian Signed for Nokia service. Symbian
Signed for Nokia is a testing and certification service for all developer branded
applications targeted to Nokia devices. Typically these applications are preinstalled into operator variant devices or delivered through Nokia sales channels
like the Ovi Store.
Digia has delivered a remote identification system to the Uusikaupunki fertiliser
plant of Yara Suomi Ltd. This project involved piloting remote identification
technology (RFID) through production lines for the bagging up and collection of
large fertiliser sacks.
Hansel has selected Digia as the only supplier for the Finnish central
government's IT Service Desk system. Digia will have a comprehensive
responsibility over the system's design, maintenance and support services, while
the system will be technically implemented with the software of the IT software
company, CA. The Service Desk system was first introduced in the central
government's administrative and human resources management service centers
whose systems will have an estimated 90,000 end users through a self-service
portal.

August
Digia announced it has become one of the first Qt Alliance Partners and will
cooperate with Nokia to grow a vibrant Qt user ecosystem. Digia's role as a Qt
Alliance Partner combined with Digia's extensive experience in Qt software
projects sets Digia as a leading player in the Qt ecosystem. Digia's role as a Qt
Alliance Partner is a recognition of both proven expertise and scale required for
delivering advanced Qt based software solutions across industries and
geographical locations.

September
ISO 9001 quality certificate granted Digia Plc's operations in Finland. Digia has
expanded its quality system to cover all its operations in Finland, including
management, sales, production and continuous development processes in
accordance with the ISO 9001:2008 standard. Inspecta Certification has audited
and certified the quality system, granting it an SFS-EN ISO 9001:2008 quality
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August
Digia announced it has become one of the first Qt Alliance Partners and will
cooperate with Nokia to grow a vibrant Qt user ecosystem. Digia's role as a Qt
Alliance Partner combined with Digia's extensive experience in Qt software
projects sets Digia as a leading player in the Qt ecosystem. Digia's role as a Qt
Alliance Partner is a recognition of both proven expertise and scale required for
delivering advanced Qt based software solutions across industries and
geographical locations.

September
ISO 9001 quality certificate granted Digia Plc's operations in Finland. Digia has
expanded its quality system to cover all its operations in Finland, including
management, sales, production and continuous development processes in
accordance with the ISO 9001:2008 standard. Inspecta Certification has audited
and certified the quality system, granting it an SFS-EN ISO 9001:2008 quality
certificate.

October
Digia demonstrated several Qt based software and service innovations, including
a new concept for next generation connected car experience, at Qt developers
conference in Munich. As Qt Alliance partner and one of the event sponsors,
Digia showcased innovative usage of Qt both in mainstream smart phone
(Symbian), emerging mobile computer (MAEMO) and embedded environments
such as vehicles and intelligent machines.
Digia, Tampere University of Technology, Aalto University and University of
Helsinki joined their strengths in developing Qt-ecosystem during a Qt Code
Camp course in October. During a one week intense course participants got
familiar with the Qt technology and built a fully functioning application utilizing
the skills they had just learned. The course was implemented simultaneously in
two cities, which set new requirements on Digia's training team and also on
course practicalities.
Digia boosted efficiency by rationalising network of business locations.
Measures to be taken were planned to include close down of the sites in Kuopio,
Turku, Lahti and Vaasa, which employ a total of ca. 80 persons.

November
Digia took part in Invest 2009 Fair at Wanha Satama, Helsinki.
Ingman Group Oy Ab and the companies under its control thus control a total of
2,185,400 Digia's shares and votes, which exceed 10% of Digia's share capital,
corresponding to 10.48% of Digia's shares and votes.
Pekka Sivonen informed Digia that he has sold 2,085,400 Digia Plc's shares, as a
result whereof the amount of shares in his control has decreased under 15% of
the shares and votes of Digia.

December
A text message (SMS) based appointment booking service has been developed
for the practical organisation of H1N1 mass vaccination campaigns that will begin
in early 2010. This service is expected to increase interest in said vaccinations
and facilitate the related queue management. In municipalities introducing the
service, the citizens will obtain the vaccination at a time that best suits them.
The service was piloted by the city of Oulu in cooperation with the Finnish
software company, Digia.
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Key figures
Net sales
•
•
•
•
•

2009
2008
2007
2006
2005

€
120,335,000
123,203,000
105,839,000
84,968,000
60,525,000

Click chart to
enlarge

Operating profit
•
•
•
•
•

2009
2008
2007
2006
2005

€
16,936,000
13,437,000
11,080,000
8,354,000
4,229,000

Operating profit before extraordinary items does not include one-off items, which
in the 2009 fiscal year comprised a writedown of goodwill totalling EUR 23.8
million and an operational restructuring provision of EUR 0.9 million. Operating
profit including one-off items was EUR -7.8 million for the year.

Cash flow from operations
•
•
•
•
•

2009
2008
2007
2006
2005

€
20,232,000
15,473,000
6,157,000
5,756,000
5,691,000

Earnings per share before extraordinary items
•
•
•
•
•

2009
2008
2007
2006
2005

€
0,53
0,36
0,29
0,25
0,14

Earnings per share before extraordinary items was calculated for the 2009 fiscal
year before the effect of one-off items. The EPS after extraordinary items was
EUR -0.67 per share.
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CEO's review
The year 2010 seems truly promising: the market outlook has improved on
twelve months ago and there is an air of eager anticipation in our company. This
year we will actively seek growth.
At the beginning of 2009, companies seemed to report nothing but bad news and
it was difficult to see our way ahead. We therefore decided to focus on our core
operations, promising to concentrate on four things in 2009: securing a strong
cash flow, sustaining profitability, strengthening our balance sheet and reducing
debt. We succeeded in all of these areas, and we are now in much better shape
than before.
We began the year under review with a new organisation, and believe that our
restructuring was more successful than average. Our new organisation has
clearly met the objectives set for it. Our sales are now managed from a single
point and our entire offering is competitively targeted at all our customers.
Moving away from being a ‘silo-based’ organisation has enabled us to provide
our customers with even more added value and flexibility than before.
Unfortunately, we were also forced to make unpleasant decisions, such as closing
certain sites in order to rationalise our operations. However, we are delighted
with that fact that more than half of the experts from these sites have relocated
elsewhere within Digia on a permanent or temporary basis. Towards the end of
the year, as a one-off measure, we also announced the write-down of the
goodwill relating to our Mobile Solutions business. Although this left the company
with a negative net profit, our operating profit was good.
Today, we have a clearer view of the way ahead and are extending our gaze
much further into the future. In addition to concentrating on core operations, we
will seek to develop our business through new, strategic projects while building
profitable growth.
According to our new strategy, we will seek not only organic growth but also, for
example, growth through international product business. Our solid cash flow will
enable us to implement development projects, make investments, strengthen
our balance sheet and issue a continuous flow of dividends.
I would like to extend my warm thanks to our customers for their fruitful
cooperation, and to our shareholders for trusting in our success. My special
thanks also go out to Digia’s skilled personnel for each and every valuable
workday during last year.
Juha Varelius
CEO
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Profitable growth through inventive solutions Digia’s strategy in 2010 – 2013
Digia is a profitable growth company whose ability to turn a profit, coupled with solid financial health,
enables its continuous rise in value. The company delivers value to its customers by means of
information system solutions and services that provide increased sales, more efficient operations and
improved services. The Digia strategy is based on its own or third-party products, services, strong
expertise, and first-rate project management.

Inventive solutions
Digia delivers value to its customers by means of information system solutions and services that provide increased
sales, more efficient operations and improved services. The company enables its customers’ growth and
internationalisation by employing internet-based and multi-channel information system solutions. Digia is wellknown for its ability to quickly adopt and apply new technologies and products. The company’s high-quality project
management ensures that customers’ goals are met in all development projects.

Appreciation for investors
Digia’s growth is primarily organic, through the development of business operations and its product and service
portfolio. The company’s product and service strategy is based on multi-channel solutions that add efficiency to
customers’ business operations, as well as contract engineering and services covering the entire product lifecycle.
An innovative development partner to its customers, Digia launches products, services and business models that
employ new technologies. The company will also expand its activities into new market areas.
Digia’s profitability exceeds the industry average, good profitability being based on an efficient management
system and processes. The company's focus on leading technologies and methods accelerates learning, while also
improving the quality and efficiency of operations. Moreover, Digia’s strong industry expertise, its position as a
technological forerunner, and its cost-efficient office network enable price competitiveness.
Digia’s strong cash flow enables the implementation of strategic development projects, investments, solidification
of its balance sheet, and a continuous flow of dividends. The company is also striving to strengthen its
international product-based business. A strong balance sheet and profitable growth enable constant appreciation.
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Personnel
2009 marked by internationalisation
Number of employees grew by 10%
During 2009, the number of employees in Digia increased by 134 (+10%). This
growth was entirely organic. At the year-end, Digia employed 1,471 people.
Employee turnover was 4.4%.

Click chart
to enlarge

The average age was approximately 35 years, while the proportion of women
was 22%, which is typical of the IT sector.
During the year Digia received more than 3,000 job applications, which was in
line with the previous year. The number of open positions grew sharply towards
the year-end. In particular, the company sought experienced Linux, Java and
Web UI experts.

Growth in China
Among Digia’s foreign units, growth was focused in China. The number of
personnel employed by Digia’s Chinese functions increased from 40 to 132
during the year. In addition to Chengdu, an office was opened in Beijing. Digia’s
Swedish functions grew by four employees. Personnel employed in Russia
decreased somewhat, due to the concentration of the Russian operation in the
St. Petersburg unit. At the year-end, 18% of all personnel were employed
outside Finland.

Geographical centralisation
Statutory employer-employee negotiations were initiated in the company in
order to reduce the number of sites, with the aim of responding better to market
and customer needs and ensuring extensive competencies at each site. During
the negotiations, replacement positions were offered at alternative sites to all
employees of the offices marked for closure. As a result, 37 employees decided
to transfer permanently or temporarily elsewhere within Digia.
The aim of these measures was to improve the efficiency of the company’s
organisation in general, and the profitability and competitiveness of the Mobile
Solutions business in particular. In 2010, in Finland Digia will operate from seven
sites compared to the previous 11.

Close co-operation with employees
The company worked in close co-operation with its personnel representatives,
most crucially via the Co-operation Team, to which employees elect
representatives. Additionally, in accordance with the collective labor agreement
system, the shop steward and his or her deputy are permanent members of the
Co-operation Team. The team handles issues related to personnel conditions,
including organisation, processes, instructions, benefits, working hours,
remuneration and rewards. The company also has an elected administrative
representative, who participates in managerial activities through the extended
management team.
Occupational safety activities are performed regionally. The company has an
occupational safety delegate, an occupational safety committee and local
occupational safety spokesmen.

Further improvements in supervisory work
The annual work environment survey provided plenty of encouraging feedback
and good improvement suggestions. As in the previous year, average scores
improved, particularly in supervisory work.
Smaller-scale management surveys and quick polls on job satisfaction were also
conducted during the year. These are intended to provide a snapshot of
personnel opinions once a quarter, leading to immediate measures based on the
feedback received. The company also evaluated satisfaction with internal
communication procedures and took measures to improve this area of activity.

Employee well-being
Employee benefits provided to foster well-being included luncheon vouchers and
meal tickets for daily meals, as well as occupational health care services
provided either through health insurance or on a contractual basis by private
clinics. Dental health care and assistance to employees taking care of sick
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Smaller-scale management surveys and quick polls on job satisfaction were also
conducted during the year. These are intended to provide a snapshot of
personnel opinions once a quarter, leading to immediate measures based on the
feedback received. The company also evaluated satisfaction with internal
communication procedures and took measures to improve this area of activity.

Employee well-being
Employee benefits provided to foster well-being included luncheon vouchers and
meal tickets for daily meals, as well as occupational health care services
provided either through health insurance or on a contractual basis by private
clinics. Dental health care and assistance to employees taking care of sick
children were also maintained as benefits.
The maintenance of employees’ work/life balance was promoted by means of
flexible working hours, support for home broadband connections and mobile
technology.
Recreational activities are coordinated at Digia by the OpenClub, which is
allocated a reasonable annual budget. Clubs have been established covering
various activities in each of the regions in which Digia operates. Fitness vouchers
are also provided to promote voluntary exercise.

Performance-based rewards
Employee remuneration was based either on personal or team/project
performance. The salary models of some employees comprised a fixed as well as
a variable portion.
Other personnel were invited to take part in a profit-sharing scheme, through
which the portion of the group’s profit exceeding the quarterly target was
distributed to staff who had met certain utilisation rate or invoicing rate criteria.
Nearly 80% of employees within the scheme fulfilled these criteria.
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Quality and Competences ensured
High quality services lead to success. In Digia, high quality services are made of skilful people, well-designed
processes and efficient tools and methods. All these factors combined ensure customer satisfaction and
competitive advantage.
Understanding changing customer needs and market trends in relation to the latest technological possibilities are
key inputs for Digia’s competence development system. These insights are verified continuously in every customer
case. The ability to transform and generate new competences in a timely manner is the key output of this system.
Digia can guarantee the right people for the right job at any given time through its systematic competence
development and resource allocation processes. By continuously monitoring its performance and improving its
processes Digia is able to bring consistency to its operations. This spells trust and quality for the customer and
satisfied customers to Digia.

Quality has its makers
High quality services lead to success. In Digia, the actors behind
qualitative operations are skilful people, well-designed processes and
efficient methods. All these factors create customer satisfaction and
competitive advantage.
Digia is continuously developing its quality management system - Digia Core
Process Model (CPM) - based on recent development in the industry, our learning
experiences and customer feedback.
Quality is an integral part of our business at Digia. Our certified Core Process
Model, which includes descriptions of our processes, as well as instructions,
templates and reference material, steers operations in projects, and guarantees a
consistent working method of high quality.
Digia Core Process Model derives directly from the company’s strategy and quality
policy. Digia is committed to constant and comprehensive quality development in
order to guarantee the satisfaction of our customers and other interest groups. At
Digia, everyone is responsible for quality.
Digia Quality Management System was certified for the first time in 1994. Digia’s
current, extensive quality management system has been audited and certified by
Inspecta Certification. The system has also been granted the SFS-EN ISO
9001:2008 quality certificate.

Quality policy and objectives
Quality policy
 The quality policy and quality procedures have been confirmed by Digia






management
Quality is an essential part of Digia’s business
Digia cares for continuous, comprehensive and qualitative development of
business to assure our customers’ and other stakeholders’ satisfaction
Every Digia employee is responsible for the quality
Digia systematically monitors the realisation of the quality policy and procedures
Digia systematically invests in continuous improvement and development of
quality

Quality objectives
 Digia analyses and measures the quality
 Quality operations and expenses
 Customer satisfaction
 Personnel satisfaction
 Continuous process improvement
 Project quality
 The best practices for successful quality assurance which aim to improve the

profitability

Customer satisfaction
Customer relations constitute the core of Digia’s strategy. Customer feedback is
steering the development of the quality management system. The valuable
feedback is based on systematic enquiries of our customer orders and projects and
on Digia’s annual customer satisfaction survey.

Continuous improvement of quality
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supplies Finnish
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Digia
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IT Service
Service
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Desk
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sole
sole supplier
supplier of
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CA.
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Service Desk
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first
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Labour, and
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the government’s
government’s

administrative
administrative and
and human
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service
management service centers.
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The
service
service centers’
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systems will
will have
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estimated 90,000
an
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end users
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a self-service
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Customer satisfaction

Plc

service, regardless of geographical
location. Real-time serviceability
monitoring enables a rapid reaction
to emergency situations. In
addition, resources can be
channeled accurately thanks to upto-date monitoring of loads and
capacity.

Customer relations constitute the core of Digia’s strategy. Customer feedback is
steering the development of the quality management system. The valuable
feedback is based on systematic enquiries of our customer orders and projects and
on Digia’s annual customer satisfaction survey.

Continuous improvement of quality
High quality and consistent operations are important to Digia. The company
management is committed to the quality objectives and the company
systematically invests in the improvement and development of its quality. The aim
is to ensure that customers receive professional services of high quality and to
guarantee customer satisfaction.
Committed employees are the prerequisite for high quality operations and good
results are a product of competent and motivated employees. Digia constantly aims
to provide its personnel with the latest tools and best possible processes to work
with. People are encouraged to continuous improvement through e.g. various
ideation channels and by rewarding good performances.
Digia systematically monitors the implementation of its quality operations. The
suitability and development of the quality management system, Core Process
Model, is monitored regularly through both internal and external audits.

Ensured competences
Ensured competences

The management and continuous development of the competences form
two of the cornerstones of Digia’s success. Systematic processes are in
place to ensure the development of selected competences in line with
changing
business needs.
This allows
Digia to apply
thecompetences
right competence
The management
and continuous
development
of the
form
totwo
the of
right
quickly and
thejob,
cornerstones
of efficiently.
Digia’s success. Systematic processes are in
place to ensure the development of selected competences in line with
changing business
needs.ahead
This allows
Digia
to apply the right competence
Systematic
development
of the
curve
to the right job, quickly and efficiently.
Core competence areas derived from Digia’s strategy are developed in order to
match
the company's
expertise in
the latest
technologies
Systematic
development
ahead
of the
curve with customer needs. On
this basis, Digia draws up concrete objectives and measures. In addition, Digia uses
lifeCore
cycle
analyses for
the anticipatory,
of its competences
and
competence
areas
derived from correct
Digia’s dimensioning
strategy are developed
in order to
technologies
with respect
to demand.
match the company's
expertise
in the latest technologies with customer needs. On
this basis, Digia draws up concrete objectives and measures. In addition, Digia uses
lifebedrocks
cycle analyses
for the anticipatory,
dimensioning
its competences
The
of an effective
competence correct
development
system of
include
the swifter and
technologies
with respect to demand.
adjustment
of development
customers’ needs and faster identification of
emerging trends. Digia continuously measures its competences and their
correspondence
to an
business
needs.
This enables
the smooth
adjustment
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effective
competence
development
system
include of
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adjustment
development
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needs anddevelopment.
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emerging trends. Digia continuously measures its competences and their
business needs.
This enables
thepreviously
smooth adjustment
of Digia’s
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objectives
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the easy
redirection
of its competence
development.
paths
and, for
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through
familiarisation
with important
new technologies. A
process of deep familiarisation yields valuable pointers for the strategic evaluation
of At
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competence
and technologies.
individual
level,areas
competences
are developed along previously agreed training
paths and, for example, through familiarisation with important new technologies. A
process
of deep
Best
experts
forfamiliarisation
each task yields valuable pointers for the strategic evaluation
of new competence areas and technologies.
By combining systematic competence development with efficient capacity
management,
Digia
can
always
guarantee its provision of the best people in
Best experts
for
each
task
support of its customers, while offering suitable jobs and personal development
opportunities
to systematic
its employees.
By combining
competence development with efficient capacity
management, Digia can always guarantee its provision of the best people in
support of its
offering
suitable
jobswith
andits
personal
development
Furthermore,
bycustomers,
combining while
a strong
partner
network
own competence
opportunitiesDigia
to itsisemployees.
development,
able to provide customers with optimal, cost-efficient and
time-saving service and solution packages.
Furthermore, by combining a strong partner network with its own competence
development, Digia is able to provide customers with optimal, cost-efficient and
time-saving service and solution packages.

Digia improves Sofia Bank’s
cost efficiency
Digia has provided Sofia Bank with a
Digia
improves
Sofia
Bank’s
Digia
Financial
Systems
investment

cost
efficiency
and
banking
solution, completed
with
bank
and
loanBank with a
Digia
hasaccount
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bankreceived
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Office
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as time
well of
Office package
the record
asonly
withfour
third-party
used in
months.systems
The delivery
stock-brokerage
functions.
included interfaces
with all of the
necessary internal systems, as well
Sofia
selected
Digia assystems
its system
as with
third-party
used in
supplier
due to the functions.
latter’s cost
stock-brokerage
efficiency, flexibility and
innovativeness.
Sofia selected Digia as its system
supplier due to the latter’s cost
efficiency, flexibility and
innovativeness.
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Enterprise Solutions
Digia offers software and services in support of its customers’ operations. Its customers are enterprises and
organisations of all sizes, from both the private and public sectors.
Digia’s selection includes off-the-shelf software for operational and business management. The company also
offers custom-made solutions for electronic services and customer experience management, based on leading
technology companies’ architecture platforms.
Digia’s service offering covers the construction of solutions, implementation services and comprehensive services
throughout the life-cycle.

ERP system business grows steadily
Despite the recession, Digia managed to grow its ERP systems business. This success was based on
outstanding customer satisfaction and the continuous ability to bring out new solutions meeting
advanced needs.
Digia’s ERP system business comprises the company’s own and third-party off-the-shelf software, provided
extensively to various sectors. Digia has 20 years of experience as a strong Finnish expert in ERP, in which time it
has built a large, satisfied customer base. In recent years, the company has expanded its operations to
international ERP projects.

Digia offers flexible solutions
Business operations are increasingly founded on industry-specific, off-the-shelf software used ‘as is’ to enable
normal business processes within the sector and to link to other applications and business partners’ systems.
Off-the-shelf software can cover the basic needs of most customers, for instance in order and delivery chain
management, stock and asset management, customer and supplier management, financial administration and
statutory reporting. Digia’s selection includes software that serves the needs of retailers, industry, service
organisations, banks, asset management and trade unions, among others.
Digia’s solutions are known for their flexibility. In addition to ready-made software, customers can obtain
consulting and development services for the creation of custom functions in line with the sector’s best practices
and specific customer requirements.
Digia’s offering encompasses software implementation, as well as comprehensive continuous services during the
product’s life cycle. Many customers seek as many application-related services as they can from a single supplier
throughout an application’s lifetime.
In 2009 Digia had a particular focus on developing the SaaS (Software-as-a-Service) model in selected application
segments. Digia strongly believes that, in the future, SaaS will be the predominant method of acquiring business
applications. Various leasing options are already prevalent in many other areas of asset management.

Recession busting via improved service selection and operating models
In early 2009, the market for ERP systems was difficult. Many businesses froze their investments, which made it
difficult to win new delivery contracts in markets where Digia has traditionally prospered – retail and industry.
Nevertheless, the company succeeded in securing a foothold in the service sector, particularly in the Field Services
business area. Digia has already provided dozens of system solutions for this sector, facilitating major savings for
customers through increased efficiency.
During the spring, Digia worked on developing its SaaS offering and adjusting its operating models to the changed
environment. Towards the end of the year, the market showed signs of recovery and important new delivery
contracts were made. Although only modest growth is expected in the ERP system market in 2010, Digia’s
objective is to achieve profitable growth in this business environment too.
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Customer experience management competitive customer service
Digia’s Customer Experience Management services help to improve the
quality of encounters between Digia’s clients and their end customers. By
improving customers’ experiences, Digia’s clients can achieve increased
customer loyalty and gain a competitive edge.

A networked world, linked by the internet
Customer experience has grown in importance as a competitive factor. This has
accompanied the popularisation of electronic communications channels, which have
brought customers a broader service selection, with easier availability than ever
before. Through the internet, products and services can be compared easily and, if
necessary, a user can switch service providers. In addition, face-to-face customer
encounters are increasingly being handled by a partner rather than a company
representative.

Browser-based system
improves Valio’s feedback
management
Digia has provided Valio Corporation
with a consumer feedback system
covering the latter’s entire feedback
process. Used throughout Valio’s
Finnish units, this system serves

Due to these changes in the business environment, companies must ensure they
produce a homogeneous and personalised service, regardless of the channel used
by the end customer, or of who is providing the service.

production plants, corporate
management, product management,

Ultimate solutions for a networked business environment

Valio found this browser-based

Digia’s Customer Experience Management services enable businesses to
differentiate themselves by improving the quality of their customer encounters.
Digia’s productised consulting services assist businesses in defining a concrete
vision, strategy and action plan. This enables Digia’s clients to lift their customers’
experiences to the level to which all parties aspire.
Digia’s solutions for customer experience management include a host of
customisable components in support for facing the customer, supporting the
performance of the company’s own personnel, managing its network of partners,
and facilitating the company’s information management and context-specific
information distribution.
In line with its strategy, Digia will continue to develop and conceptualise its
Customer Experience Management services in the coming years.

marketing and customer services.

system easy to adopt, even within
its outsourced contact centre.
Thanks to multiple language
versions, use of the application can
be easily expanded. Valio’s
subsidiaries, beginning with Valio
Sweden in the spring of 2010, will
also adopt the system.
The system has accelerated
feedback handling and rendered its
quality more consistent. Efficient
handling saves time and improves
product safety, with the system
providing information on any
anomalies, which can then be
quickly addressed. Customers are
satisfied when they receive a swift
response. This user-friendly
system’s diverse reporting options
provide its various user groups with
the full range of features they need.
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Mobile Solutions
As exciting as the evolution of mobility has been already, the gates are just opening for true, widespread adoption
of mobility. Digia is among leading players who are both part of opening the gates and also helping various
industries to take full business advantage of the change. Digia is unleashing the mobility by bringing in joy and
efficiency.
Digia creates innovative mobile solutions and consumer experiences with world class mobile industry players and
corporates from various industries. Digia serves customers as a partner for full innovation flow – from sketching an
inspiring consumer experience to commercial deployment and optimising success throughout the life-cycle of the
innovation.
Digia’s long, successful track record and high customer satisfaction in mobile solution business stem from
recognised expertise gained through wide industry experience, continuous renewal and commitment to reliability
and quality of deliveries.
For co-creation of winning solutions efficiently, Digia is able to work with customers in a way that combines strong
customer intimacy, agile working methods and efficiency benefits based global scale.

Mobile industry in 2009 overview
Global recession absorbed with moderate impact
Global economical recession affected consumer demand for mobile solutions, created cost saving pressures for the
industry players, especially OEMs and operators, and as a result, affected also demand for the contracted
development services to some extent. However, despite of challenging conditions, Digia sustained good position in
the market thanks to forward looking investments into right offering and competence areas such as Linux based
platforms that raise their importance in the industry.

Increased versatility of mobile software technologies
During the year, mobile industry continued to see more players entering the market – and also increasing amount
of platform technologies used for the mobile products and services. Particularly, rise of Linux based platforms such
as Maemo and Android was a major trend during the year. Digia’s proactive measures helped the company to take
a significant leap in it’s capabilities to serve the emerging new needs: during the year, Digia’s Linux based
competences (Maemo and Android) were more than doubled to cover significant part of Digia’s mobile solution
competence base.

Rising importance of internet and cross platform technologies
As a response to rising amount of alternative mobile platform technologies, application development platforms
providing cross platform efficiency raised their importance within the industry. Namely Qt and web widget
technologies raised their profile. Digia took a strong pole position in this space via e.g. forming Alliance Partnership
with Nokia to provide professional services for customers who seek efficient, state-of-the-art Qt based software
solutions for their intelligent devices, machines and service experiences.

Continuation of rising importance of delight and ease of use in mobile user experiences
During the year, industry competition in the area of mobile device user experience continued and was stimulated
further by more touch based products entering the market and strong market introduction of Maemo platform by
Nokia. Digia succeeded to grow its user experience services portfolio to the level that positioned Digia as one of
the leading players in the mobile user experience field.

Increased consumer readiness for consuming services with mobile devices
The year 2009 was globally a year of increased use of mobile devices for consuming internet and mobile services.
The increased consumption of services was stimulated by e.g. rising service phenomena like social networking,
attractive devices for internet browsing, and more compelling data tariff plans by the mobile operators. As a
whole, future for the consumer readiness to consume mobile services looks more promising than ever – giving
positive foundation both for Digia’s customers and Digia’s own product innovations.
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Digia’s mobile solutions – riding the
next wave of innovation
Digia offers innovative mobile solutions and advanced development
services to world class mobile industry players. Digia's long, successful
track record and high customer satisfaction stem from high reliability and
quality of deliveries. Continuous renewal of expertise, proactive adoption
of new technologies, customer intimacy and agile working methods are
among key corner stones providing Digia with a position as a key partner
in mobile solutions. In addition to serving leading mobile device OEMs and
operators, Digia is well positioned to unleash the power of mobility also in
other industries where mobility is raising its role as a new source of
competitiveness.

Co-creating the next big things in mobility together with industry
leaders
Digia's services and teams working with the key players of the mobile industry are
known for the outstanding expertise, ability to deliver and ability to gain very high
customer satisfaction throughout the collaboration.
Stemming from Digia's versatile customer base, Digia knows what it takes to
innovate and make a new consumer experience happen - throughout the whole
chain: from crystallisation of an idea all the way to deployment in the market with
operators, service providers and enterprises.
Digia is able to provide a comprehensive portfolio of contracted development
services for the key parts of the mobile industry value chain:
 Software platform creation - creating the foundation for new winning devices

and services
 Device creation - integrating the masterpieces of software, hardware and
service experiences
 Application and service development - polishing intelligent experiences for
consumer delight

Mobility as seamless part of enterprise, media and vertical industry
solutions
Digia's customers cover a rich variety of industries, media and enterprises. Endusers in all these customer segments expect easy access to services - increasingly
also via a variety of channels: be it voice service, web service, mobile SMS service
or mobile application. Digia is uniquely positioned to provide power of mobility as
natural, seamless part of customer solutions - be them enterprise resource
management, CEM (Customer Experience Management) or portal solutions.

Digia's mobile product & service innovations as ready-made
solutions to focused needs

Digia raises consumer
experiences to the next level
with Qt and Nokia
Mobile device and computer
industries face a challenge of
meeting increasing expectations for
stunning consumer experiences
while also improving own R&D
efficiency. One of the key answers
to the challenge is Qt technology,
available e.g. for Embedded Linux,
Maemo, Windows Mobile, Mac OS X
and Symbian platform.
During the year, Digia strengthened
collaboration with Nokia, owner of
Qt technology, and formed an
Alliance and Training Partnership
with Nokia – setting Digia into a
leading position as a global provider
of advanced Qt based development
services for mobile industry,
manufacturers of consumer
electronics and intelligent machines.
During the year, Digia also
demonstrated several own Qt based
innovations and shared its expertise
in international conferences by e.g.
presenting a case study on what it
takes to bring Qt technology to new
mobile environments. Digia’s case
study was based on pioneering
introduction of Qt technology to
Symbian platform in co-operation
with Nokia.

Digia invests continuously into experimenting new technologies and service
concepts to evaluate best possible ways to commercialise them - either as part of
customer projects or as its own commercial software products and services.
Digia's software product portfolio consists of a suite of commercial software
products and reference demo applications for meeting focused market needs.
Solutions range from web based access to a remote device to powerful real-time
contact management for corporate employees.
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Market and trend overview
Digia has competitive edge by combining usability, web applications, business comprehension and mobile
solutions. The information systems of the future will be built on dispersed, internet-based information processing,
smart user interfaces and functionality which recognises space, time and location.
Besides the top level technology competence, Digia has broad know-how in various industries and value networks.
This allows Digia to produce value-generating solutions for business needs and challenges.
Digia has prospered in the face of a recession which has spurred rapid change in the market since 2008. Despite
the economic downturn, Digia has invested in deepening its industry-specific expertise, providing solutions to meet
the challenges in customers’ core operations and service.

Digia adjusts rapidly to industry
change
Digia continuously seeks to enhance its industry-specific competencies.
Increasingly often, it does so in order to serve its customers as a trusted
advisor in addition to its traditional role of information system supplier.
Succeeding as an adviser requires understanding of the changes taking
place in different industries and value networks. Digia must also
comprehend the challenges facing its clients’ core operations. This allows
Digia to produce value-generating solutions for business needs and
challenges.
In recent years, the business environment in which Digia’s customers operate has
undergone major changes. A particularly radical transformation over the last twelve
months has seen the global recession impact on almost all sectors of industry and
society.
Few industries are able to see as far into the future as before. More and more
companies have been forced to revise their strategies and practices in the search
for new, agile and efficient operating models that will allow them to remain
competitive in a tightening market.

Understanding changes in industry value networks
Significant changes have taken place among financial sector clientele. The financial
crisis that began in late 2008 saw the arrival of several small companies, whose
information system needs Digia has successfully begun to resolve.
Digia has traditionally been strong in the value chains of the retail industry. Having
forged strong and lasting partnerships with retail customers, Digia has developed
innovative information system solutions that improve productivity and enhance
business processes. In addition to its value chain and process expertise, Digia is
praised by retail companies for its customer-oriented approach and service skills.
As its next major step in the retail industry, Digia will switch its focus inside the
store; with more than 80% of a typical retail chain’s personnel employed in-store,
there is significant potential there for improved productivity.
At the moment, more workers are leaving than entering the market. The aging of
the population also means an increase in demand for services. In particular, the
public sector must find ways of covering this resource shortfall, while producing the
same services cost-effectively for a larger clientele, through e-services for example.
Digia is especially known as a provider of mobile solutions. Changes in the market,
coupled with technological advances, are enabling the utilisation of mobile solutions
to improve the efficiency of business management solutions. Centre stage is no
longer taken by the mobile device’s technology, but by the services it makes
possible. Earnings from content production are constantly developing, as more and
more operators compete especially for the attention of the consumer.

From information technology
provider to strategic partner
Step-by-step, Digia and S Group's
15-year long cooperation has
developed into a strategic
partnership. The core of this
relationship lies in Digia's provision
of a messaging solution to SOK,
connecting S Group's 1,600
locations, a host of back-office
systems and the cooperative's
numerous suppliers and Bonus
partners within the ambit of a single
messaging system. In addition, the
monitoring of messaging traffic and
content is handled smoothly using
systems supplied by Digia.
"Thanks to this solution, S Group is
capable of sending data closer to
real time between different business
areas. This has meant a massive
improvement in data management
and the transparency of long
delivery chains.
Digia's solution also enables
management based on up-to-date
information while forging a new
basis for the flexible measurement
and development of strategic
processes”, says Raimo Mäenpää,
SOK's Chief Information Manager.

Focus on understanding, solutions and value
Digia has prospered in the face of a recession which has spurred rapid change in
the market since 2008. Despite the economic downturn, Digia has invested in
deepening its industry-specific expertise and providing solutions to crucial
challenges in customers’ core operations and service. On this basis, Digia has firm
faith in its success in the recovering markets of 2010.
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Competitive edge by combining
usability, web applications, business
comprehension and mobile solutions
Digia’s unique combination of experience and expertise in areas such as
usability, enterprise solutions, mobile devices and web applications puts
its customers in the fast lane of Internet-based information processing in
the new decade. Whether web services, core business systems or mobile
applications are in question, through modern information technology and
its ingenious solutions Digia’s customers gain access to improved services,
more efficient operations and increased sales.
The information systems of the future will be built on dispersed, Internet-based
information processing, smart user interfaces and functionality which recognises
space, time and location. User-driven systems, whether they relate to business
activities, customers’ mobile lifestyles or digital content such as music, will
communicate fluidly with users, intelligently anticipating their needs.

Digia fulfils the promise of the mobile Internet
In recent years, novel technical solutions have significantly improved users’
experiences of the mobile Internet. Network speeds, advanced terminal interfaces
and the quality of the available services have brought applications, previously
accessible only via workstations, into the user’s pocket. On the other hand, mobile
devices are increasingly beginning to resemble workstations. Using a browser
through a touch screen is easy and even enables the use of high-end business
applications.
In Digia’s operations, these trends are reflected in increasing customer demand for
e-services, mobile work flow management solutions and diverse smart mobile
systems. More and more Digia customers want to focus strongly on the user
experience and usability of their solutions or services.
Trends are based on the market’s needs to create services that will finally fulfill the
promises of the mobile Internet in a genuinely user-driven way. For Digia, this is no
longer a separate business area or specialist competence, since the inexorable
fusion of mobile phones and the Internet is, in one way or another, involved in
almost every project Digia implements with its customers.
The emergence of this fascinating competence combination in Digia, and its
productive application in support of our customers’ business, are no coincidence but
the result of many years of strategic development. Digia has an unrivalled
capability to respond to this challenge and help its customers benefit from the
opportunities presented by the Internet of the new decade – including in mobile
form.

HUOVI portal supports security
of supply in Finland
The National Emergency Supply
Agency is tasked with providing
planning, support, guidelines and
guarantees for maintaining and
developing Finland’s security of
supply. In Finland, security of supply
is organised through a broad
partnership network, involving
various industrial segments,
administrative sectors and trade
associations.
The HUOVI portal supports the
networking of critical supply security
companies, as well as continuity and
preparedness planning. HUOVI
provides the necessary guidance in
the form of news, instructions,
maturity analyses and peer
comparisons.
Through the HUOVI portal, the
National Emergency Supply Agency
and supply-critical enterprises can
obtain an up-to-date image of
Finland’s level of preparedness and
security of supply risks. Digia
carried out the technical
implementation of the portal.
The National Emergency Supply
Agency’s Chief of Preparedness, Ralf
Sontag, is delighted with the
solution and praises Digia’s agile
project model.
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Board of Directors

From left: Jari Pasanen, Kari Karvinen, Martti Mehtälä, Pekka Sivonen, Pertti
Kyttälä. Not in the picture: Heikki Mäkijärvi.
Pekka Sivonen, b. 1961, Secondary school graduate in Political Science
Full-time Chairman of the Board of Directors since 2005. Founding shareholder of
Digia Inc., Board member (1997-2005) and Chairman (2000-2005). CEO of Digia
Inc (1997-2000). Chair of the National Emergency Supply Agency's Technology
Pool since 2007. Currently also Chairman of the Board at BlueWhite Resorts Ltd
and Comma Group Ltd. Member of the Finnish Association of Professional Board
Members since 2005.
Pertti Kyttälä, b. 1950, M.Sc. (Econ.)
Vice Chairman of the Board. Board member since 2005. Currently Managing
Director of Peranit Ltd. His previous posts include CEO of Radiolinja Ltd (19992003), IT Director of Helsinki Telephone Company (1997-1999), Managing
Director of Samlink Ltd (1994-1997), and Managing Director and Deputy
Managing Director of Sp-palvelu Ltd (1991-1994). Previously, he has held
various positions at SKOP Bank (1985-1990) and OKO Bank (1973-1985).
Moreover, he is a Board member of Valimo Wireless Ltd and Chairman of the
Board of Directors at ASAN Security Technologies Ltd.
Kari Karvinen, b. 1959, MA
Board member since 1990. Co-founder of SysOpen Plc. Chairman of the Board
(2002-2005) and Vice Chairman (1999-2002) of Sysopen. Vice Chairman of the
Board at Digia Plc (2005-2007). Board professional and independent investor. At
SysOpen Plc, held the posts of deputy Managing Director (1990-1999), Director
of Planning (1999-2000) and full-time Chairman of the Board (2002-2004). His
previous posts include Managing Director and Product Manager at Helsingin PCKonsultit Ltd (1988-1990), and various IT industry posts at Sycon Ltd (19821988). Board member of Oy Drumsö Utveckling Ab. Member of the Finnish
Association of Professional Board Members since 2003.
Martti Mehtälä, b. 1957, M.Sc. (Tech.)
Board member since 2007. Until June 2007, served as Managing Director of
Microsoft Oy for 12 years. Previously held managerial sales and marketing
positions at Nokia Data and ICL Data Oy, as well as serving as Dava Oy's
Managing Director and Country Director of Computervision Inc. Over 25 years'
experience of IT implementation and of sales and marketing in various
industries, and broad experience of working in cooperation with Finland's most
extensive IT partner network and various international partners. Positions of
trust have included membership of the National Information Security Advisory
Board established by the Ministry of Transport and Communications and of the
National Board of Economic Defense.
Heikki Mäkijärvi, b. 1959, M.Sc. (Eng.)
Board member since 2009. Currently holds the post of Vice President of Business
Development at Openwave Systems. Previously he has worked at Accel Partners
(2002-2009) and as Technology Director at Cisco Systems Finland, participating
in development tasks related to European business operations (1999-2001).
Prior to Cisco, Mäkijärvi worked for 15 years at Nokia Corporation's product
development organisation and held various managerial positions in international
marketing and business development organisations (1983-1998). No other Board
memberships.
Jari Pasanen, b. 1960, Licentiate of Technology
Digia Board member since 2009. Currently Vice President, Strategic Renewal at
SITRA, and Independent Consultant at Pointtia Oy, his assignments there
including acting as a consultant for CapMan Plc's funds. Previously held various
positions at Nokia Corporation (1993-2008). No other Board memberships.
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Group Management Team
Juha Varelius, b. 1963, M.B.A.
Digia's President and CEO as from the beginning of 2008. Reporting to the Board of
Directors, Varelius is responsible for the company’s operative business. Previously,
he has served as the President and CEO of the technology company Everypoint Inc
of Boston (2006-2007). He has also held managerial positions at Yahoo! and
Everypoint in London (2002-2006). Moreover, he has served in various managerial
positions at Sonera (1993-2002), acting in his last years there as Managing Director
of Sonera Zed and a member of the Sonera Management Team.

Asko Hakonen, b. 1961, vocational qualification in business and administration
Senior Vice President, software and service products, Management Team member
since 2008. Responsible for software and service products as well as their
development. Previously held managerial positions at the Digia Industry and Trade
division (2007-2008). Prior to joining Digia, Hakonen worked as a project and unit
manager at Sentera Plc (1998-2006), where he was in charge of internet, mobile
and ERP systems. Previously also held the post of project manager at Solagem Oy
(1990-1997). Hakonen has worked in the IT sector since 1985.

Tommi Laitinen, b. 1968, vocational qualification in business and administration
Senior Vice President, competencies and projects, Management Team member
since 2005. Laitinen is responsible for the development and management of
competencies as well as project resourcing. Previously, he has served as the SVP of
Digia’s Telecommunication division (2007-2008) and the SVP in charge of the
company's strategy and development (2005-2007). His previous positions at Digia
Inc. included Vice President, Engineering (2001-2004); Director, Quality and
Processes (2001-2004); and Business Unit Manager (1999-2000). Prior to that
(1991-1999), he was in charge of various project and product management duties
and software development duties at Econocap Engineering Oy, Teemuaho Oy,
Verkonmerkki Oy and HALT Ohjelmointi Oy.
Antti Lastunen, b. 1964, vocational qualification in business and administration
Senior Vice President, sales and marketing, Management Team member since
2008. Responsible for sales and marketing operations. Previously, he has been in
charge of Business Operations at SAP Nordic (2005-2008), and Large Enterprise
Sales (2003-2004) and Manufacturing Industry Sales (2000-2002) at SAP Finland.
Prior to that, he held positions in international customer management at SAP
and Computer Associates Finland (1995-1997) and sales at Inter Marketing (19881994), respectively.

Kjell Lindqvist, b. 1957, M.B.A.
Chief Financial Officer, Management Team member since 2005. Lindqvist is in
charge of Group finances and administration. Previously, he has acted as Digia
Inc.'s CFO (2000-2005). Prior to joining Digia, Lindqvist worked at KPMG (19822000) as Authorized Public Accountant while also being a Partner in the company.
At KPMG, Lindqvist served as Authorized Public Accountant in charge of several
international ICT subsidiaries and Finnish listed companies.

Mika Pälsi, b. 1970, LL.M.
General Counsel, Management Team member since 2009. In charge of legal
matters and stock exchange communications at the company. Trained on the
bench, post-graduate LL.M studies at the Universities of Helsinki and Leicester
(U.K.). Pälsi has over ten years’ experience in international business law, both as
an attorney and in-house counsel. Before joining Digia in 2009, Pälsi worked for
Tieto Corporation, where he was in charge of providing legal counsel to one of their
business units. Before moving into corporate practice, Pälsi worked as an attorney
at Castrén & Snellman and as a solicitor at Allen & Gledhill Advocates & Solicitors
(Singapore).
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Corporate Governance Statement
General issues
Digia's corporate governance system is based on the Companies Act, the Securities Markets Act, general corporate
governance recommendations, and the company's Articles of Association and in-company rules and regulations on
corporate governance.
Digia's corporate governance principles are integrity, accountability, fairness and transparency. This means that:
 The company complies with the applicable laws, rules and regulations.
 The company organises, plans and manages its operations, and does business abiding by the applicable

professional requirements approved by Board members, who demonstrate due care and responsibility in
performing their duties.
 The company demonstrates special prudence with respect to the management of its capital and assets.
 The company's policy is to keep all market participants actively, openly and equitably informed of its business

operations.
 The company's management, administration and personnel are subject to the appropriate internal and external

audits and supervision.

Adherence to the Governance Code
Digia adheres to the Governance Code for Listed Finnish Companies, issued on 28 October 2008 by the Finnish
Securities Market Association, with the following exceptions:
According to recommendation 29 of the Governance Code, the majority of the members of the Board's Nomination
Committee must be independent of the company. Of the two members of Digia Plc's Nomination Committee, the
Chairman of the Board, Pekka Sivonen, is employed by the company, which means that the majority requirement
is not literally fulfilled. The deviation is minor, however, being due to the relatively small size of the Board of
Directors and the fact that membership of the various committees has been distributed among Board members as
evenly as possible, taking account of their specialist competencies in relation to the committees' remit.

Shareholders' Meeting
Digia's highest decision-making body is the Shareholders' Meeting at which shareholders exercise their voting
rights regarding company matters. Each company share entitles the holder to one vote at the Shareholders'
Meeting, which the holder can cast personally or by proxy. Proxies must present a dated power of attorney or
otherwise reliably prove their entitlement to represent the shareholder in question. Shareholders and proxies may
be joined at the AGM by an assistant. The right to speak at the AGM is reserved for shareholders and their legal
representatives, proxies and assistants. Annual General Meetings are presided over by a chairman, who does not
have to be a shareholder or a representative of shareholders. The language used in the Shareholders' Meetings is
Finnish.
As specified in the Limited Liability Companies Act, the AGM must be held annually within six months of the end of
the financial year. Digia aims to convene its AGM within three months of the end of the financial year. An
Extraordinary General Meeting must be held if the Board of Directors deems it necessary or if requested in writing
by a company auditor or shareholders holding a minimum of 10 per cent of the company's shares, for the purpose
of discussing a specific issue.
The Finnish Limited Liability Companies Act and Digia's Articles of Association define the responsibilities and duties
of the Shareholders' Meeting. The chairman of the AGM is elected by the attendees. Unless the matter in hand
requires a qualified majority, decisions are made in accordance with the view drawing the support of more than
half of the votes cast. If the votes are equal, the chairman casts the deciding vote. In elections, the person
receiving the most votes is elected.
In line with the Articles of Association, the AGM's functions are the election of Board members and auditors, the
adoption of the financial statements, the discharge of Board members and the Managing Director from liability, as
well as profit distribution. On a case-by-case basis, the AGM may handle matters not listed in the Articles of
Association.
For corporate governance purposes, the AGM's two major roles include the election of Board members and
auditors. The Nomination Committee of the Board of Directors makes a proposal regarding the make-up of the
new Board of Directors to the AGM. When necessary, the Board or the Audit Committee can also make a proposal
regarding the appointment of the auditor. The AGM may approve these proposals as such or make a different
decision. All those appointed as Board members or auditors must provide prior written acceptance of the position.
Extraordinary General Meetings decide on the matters for which they have been specifically convened.

Board of Directors
Operations and duties

Elected by the Shareholders' Meeting, the Board of Directors is in charge of company administration and the
appropriate organisation of company operations. Under the Articles of Association, the Board of Directors must
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consist of a minimum of five and a maximum of eight members. The Nomination Committee prepares a proposal
for the Shareholders' Meeting regarding the composition of the new Board of Directors to be appointed.
The majority of Board members must be independent of the company and a minimum of two of those members
must also be independent of the company's major shareholders. The Managing Director or other company
employees under the Managing Director's direction may not be elected members of the Board.
The term of all Board members expires at the end of the Annual General Meeting following their election. A Board
member can be re-elected without limitations on the number of successive terms. The Board of Directors elects its
Chairman and Vice Chairman from amongst its members. If the Board so decides, the position of Chairman of the
Board may be a full-time job. The terms of employment must be agreed in a separate contract, as has been done
with the current Chairman, Pekka Sivonen.
The Board has prepared and approved a written agenda for its work. In addition to Board duties prescribed by the
Companies Act and other rules and regulations, Digia's Board of Directors is responsible for issues on its agenda,
observing the following guidelines:
 Good board practices require that the Board of Directors, instead of needlessly interfering in the details involved

in day-to-day operations, concentrate on elaborating the company's short- and long-term strategies.
 The Board's general duty is to steer the company's business with a view to maximizing shareholder value in the

long term, while taking account of expectations set by various stakeholder groups; and
 Board members are required to perform on the basis of sufficient, relevant and updated information, in order to

serve the company's interests.
In addition, the Board's agenda:
 Defines the Board's annual action plan and provides a preliminary meeting schedule and framework agenda for

each meeting;
 Provides guidelines for the Board's annual self-assessment;
 Provides guidelines for distributing notices of meetings and advance information to the Board and procedures

for keeping and adopting minutes;
 Defines job descriptions for the Chairman, members and secretary of the Board of Directors (the secretary is

the Company's Director for Legal Affairs or, if absent, the CEO); and
 Defines the frameworks within which the Board may set up special committees or working groups.

During the 2009 financial year, the Board convened 21 times. The meeting attendance rate averaged 97 per cent.
The Board evaluates its activities and working methods annually, employing an external consultant for this
evaluation, if necessary.

Board Members

In 2009, the Digia Plc Board of Directors comprised:
Pekka Sivonen, b. 1961, Secondary school graduate in Political Science
Full-time Chairman of the Board of Directors since 2005. Founding shareholder of Digia Inc., Board member
(1997-2005) and Chairman (2000-2005). CEO of Digia Inc (1997-2000). Chair of the National Emergency Supply
Agency's Technology Pool since 2007. Currently also Chairman of the Board at BlueWhite Resorts Ltd and Comma
Group Ltd. Member of the Finnish Association of Professional Board Members since 2005.
Pertti Kyttälä, b. 1950, M.Sc. (Econ.)
Vice Chairman of the Board. Board member since 2005. Currently Managing Director of Peranit Ltd. His previous
posts include CEO of Radiolinja Ltd (1999-2003), IT Director of Helsinki Telephone Company (1997-1999),
Managing Director of Samlink Ltd (1994-1997), and Managing Director and Deputy Managing Director of Sppalvelu Ltd (1991-1994). Previously, he has held various positions at SKOP Bank (1985-1990) and OKO Bank
(1973-1985). Moreover, he is a Chairman of the Board of Directors at ASAN Security Technologies Ltd.
Kari Karvinen, b. 1959, MA
Board member since 1990. Co-founder of SysOpen Plc. Chairman of the Board (2002-2005) and Vice Chairman
(1999-2002) of Sysopen. Vice Chairman of the Board at Digia Plc (2005-2007). Board professional and
independent investor. At SysOpen Plc, held the posts of deputy Managing Director (1990-1999), Director of
Planning (1999-2000) and full-time Chairman of the Board (2002-2004). His previous posts include Managing
Director and Product Manager at Helsingin PC-Konsultit Ltd (1988-1990), and various IT industry posts at Sycon
Ltd (1982-1988). Board member of Oy Drumsö Utveckling Ab. Member of the Finnish Association of Professional
Board Members since 2003.
Martti Mehtälä, b. 1957, M.Sc. (Tech.)
Board member since 2007. Until June 2007, served as Managing Director of Microsoft Oy for 12 years. Previously
held managerial sales and marketing positions at Nokia Data and ICL Data Oy, as well as serving as Dava Oy's
Managing Director and Country Director of Computervision Inc. Over 25 years' experience of IT implementation
and of sales and marketing in various industries, and broad experience of working in cooperation with Finland's
most extensive IT partner network and various international partners. Positions of trust have included membership
of the National Information Security Advisory Board established by the Ministry of Transport and Communications
and of the National Board of Economic Defense.
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Heikki Mäkijärvi, b. 1959, M.Sc. (Eng.)
Board member since 2009. Currently holds the post of Vice President of Business Development at Openwave
Systems. Previously he has worked at Accel Partners (2002-2009) and as Technology Director at Cisco Systems
Finland, participating in development tasks related to European business operations (1999-2001). Prior to Cisco,
Mäkijärvi worked for 15 years at Nokia Corporation's product development organisation and held various
managerial positions in international marketing and business development organisations (1983-1998). No other
Board memberships.
Jari Pasanen, b. 1960, Licentiate of Technology
Digia Board member since 2009. Currently Vice President, Strategic Renewal at SITRA, and Independent
Consultant at Pointtia Oy, his assignments there including acting as a consultant for CapMan Plc's funds. Previously
held various positions at Nokia Corporation (1993-2008). No other Board memberships.
Of the aforementioned members of the Board, Pertti Kyttälä, Martti Mehtälä, Kari Karvinen, Jari Pasanen and
Heikki Mäkijärvi are independent of the company and its major shareholders.

Committees of the Board of Directors

The Digia Board of Directors had three committees in 2009: the Compensation Committee, the Audit Committee,
and the Nomination Committee.
These committees do not hold powers of decision or execution. They assist the Board in decision-making
concerning their own areas of expertise. The committees report regularly on their work to the Board, which
governs and assumes collegiate responsibility for the committees' work.
According to an agenda approved by the Board, the purpose of Digia's Compensation Committee is to prepare and
follow up compensation and remuneration schemes in order to ensure that the company's targets are met, to
guarantee the objectivity of decision-making, and to see to it that the schemes are transparent and systematic. In
2009, the members of the Compensation Committee were Martti Mehtälä (Chairman), Pertti Kyttälä and Jari
Pasanen. In 2009, the committee convened three times, with full attendance by all members.
According to an agenda approved by the Board, the purpose of the Audit Committee is to assist the Board of
Directors in ensuring that the company's financial reporting, accounting methods, financial statements and other
reported financial information are legitimate, balanced, transparent and clear, as further specified in the agenda.
In 2010 the Audit Committee was composed of Pertti Kyttälä (Chairman), Martti Mehtälä and Heikki Mäkijärvi. The
committee convened five times in 2009, with full attendance by all members.
According to an agenda approved by the Board, the Nomination Committee's duty is to prepare proposals for the
Annual General Meeting concerning the number of members of the Board of Directors, the members of the Board
of Directors, the remuneration of the Chairman, Vice Chairman and members of the Board and the remuneration
of the chairmen and members of the committees of the Board of Directors. In 2009, the members of the Audit
Committee were Pekka Sivonen (Chairman) and Kari Karvinen. The committee convened twice in 2009 prior to the
AGM held in the spring, with full attendance by both members.

CEO
The company's Chief Executive Officer is appointed by the Board of Directors. The CEO is in charge of Digia's
business operations and administration in accordance with the instructions and regulations issued by the Board of
Directors, and as defined by the Finnish Limited Liability Companies Act. The CEO may take exceptional and farreaching measures, in view of the nature and scope of the company's activities, only if so authorised by the Board
of Directors. The CEO chairs the Group Management Team's meetings. Moreover, the CEO is not a member of the
Board of Directors, but attends Board meetings.
The CEO's service contract, approved by the Board of Directors, defines the key terms and conditions which
govern his/her employment, in writing.
Juha Varelius (b. 1963) has been the company's CEO since the beginning of 2008.

Group Management Team
Chaired by the CEO, the Group Management Team is in charge of the day-to-day management of the Group's
operational business. The Management Team convenes regularly to discuss issues in accordance with the Group's
management system. The Management Team has no official status based on the Limited Liability Companies Act or
Digia's Articles of Association, i.e. it does not exercise legally endowed authority. In practice, the Management
Team, led by the CEO, makes decisions on the company's day-to-day business operations.
The Management Team comprises the directors in charge of key functions. Its composition and the terms of its
members' employment are confirmed by the Board of Directors, as proposed by the CEO.
In 2009, the Digia Plc Group Management Team comprised:
Juha Varelius, b. 1963, M.B.A.
Digia's President and CEO as from the beginning of 2008. Reporting to the Board of Directors, Varelius is
responsible for the company's operative business. Previously, he has served as the President and CEO of the
technology company Everypoint Inc of Boston (2006-2007). He has also held managerial positions at Yahoo! and
Everypoint in London (2002-2006). Moreover, he has served in various managerial positions at Sonera (19932002), acting in his last years there as Managing Director of Sonera Zed and a member of the Sonera Management
Team.
Asko Hakonen, b. 1961, vocational qualification in business and administration
Senior Vice President, software and service products, Management Team member since 2008. Responsible for
software and service products as well as their development. Previously held managerial positions at the Digia
Industry and Trade division (2007-2008). Prior to joining Digia, Hakonen worked as a project and unit manager at
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Team.
Asko Hakonen, b. 1961, vocational qualification in business and administration
Senior Vice President, software and service products, Management Team member since 2008. Responsible for
software and service products as well as their development. Previously held managerial positions at the Digia
Industry and Trade division (2007-2008). Prior to joining Digia, Hakonen worked as a project and unit manager at
Sentera Plc (1998-2006), where he was in charge of internet, mobile and ERP systems. Previously also held the
post of project manager at Solagem Oy (1990-1997). Hakonen has worked in the IT sector since 1985.
Tommi Laitinen, b. 1968, vocational qualification in business and administration
Senior Vice President, competencies and projects, Management Team member since 2005. Laitinen is responsible
for the development and management of competencies as well as project resourcing. Previously, he has served as
the SVP of Digia's Telecommunication division (2007-2008) and the SVP in charge of the company's strategy and
development (2005-2007). His previous positions at Digia Inc. included Vice President, Engineering (2001-2004);
Director, Quality and Processes (2001-2004); and Business Unit Manager (1999-2000). Prior to that (1991-1999),
he was in charge of various project and product management duties and software development duties at Econocap
Engineering Oy, Teemuaho Oy, Verkonmerkki Oy and HALT Ohjelmointi Oy.
Antti Lastunen, b. 1964, vocational qualification in business and administration
Senior Vice President, sales and marketing, Management Team member since 2008. Responsible for sales and
marketing operations. Previously, he has been in charge of Business Operations at SAP Nordic (2005-2008), and
Large Enterprise Sales (2003-2004) and Manufacturing Industry Sales (2000-2002) at SAP Finland. Prior to that,
he held positions in international customer management at SAP and Computer Associates Finland (1995-1997) and
sales at Inter Marketing (1988-1994), respectively.
Kjell Lindqvist, b. 1957, M.B.A.
Chief Financial Officer, Management Team member since 2005. Lindqvist is in charge of Group finances and
administration. Previously, he has acted as Digia Inc.'s CFO (2000-2005). Prior to joining Digia, Lindqvist worked
at KPMG (1982-2000) as Authorized Public Accountant while also being a Partner in the company. At KPMG,
Lindqvist served as Authorized Public Accountant in charge of several international ICT subsidiaries and Finnish
listed companies.
Mika Pälsi, born 1970, LL.M.
General Counsel, Management Team member since 2009. In charge of legal matters and stock exchange
communications at the company. Trained on the bench, post-graduate LL.M studies at the Universities of Helsinki
and Leicester (U.K.). Pälsi has over ten years' experience in international business law, both as an attorney and inhouse counsel. Before joining Digia in 2009, Pälsi worked for Tieto Corporation, where he was in charge of
providing legal counsel to one of their business units. Before moving into corporate practice, Pälsi worked as an
attorney at Castrén & Snellman and as a lawyer at Allen & Gledhill Advocates & Solicitors (Singapore).
Until December 2009, the Group Management Team also included Juha Leinonkoski as SVP, International
Business.

Management Emoluments
Board of Directors

The Shareholders' Meeting decides on emoluments payable to the Board of Directors and grounds for the
compensation of expenses. The 2009 AGM decided to pay monthly emoluments of EUR 2,000 to Board members,
EUR 3,000 to the Vice Chairman and EUR 5,000 to the Chairman for their work on the Board. In addition, the AGM
approved EUR 400 in fees per Board or committee meeting. The aforementioned monthly and meeting-based
emoluments do not apply to a full-time Chairman of the Board of Directors. Moreover, the Shareholders' Meeting
decided that standard and reasonable costs resulting from work on the Board would be reimbursed.
In the 2009 financial year, a total of EUR 164,400 was paid in emoluments to the members of the Board of
Directors for their work on the Board, as follows:
Pertti Kyttälä
Kari Karvinen
Martti Mehtälä
Jari Pasanen
Heikki Mäkijärvi

EUR
EUR
EUR
EUR
EUR

45,200
32,800
33,600
26,400
26,400

All emoluments were monetary. The company does not grant stock options or share-based remuneration for work
on the Board.

Chairman of the Board

The remuneration of the full-time Chairman of the Board of Directors, Pekka Sivonen, is based on a separate fixedterm employment contract approved by the Board of Directors. From the 2010 AGM onwards, the AGM will set a
maximum sum for emoluments paid to any full-time Chairman of the Board according to a separate contract. The
Chairman did not receive further compensation for Board work.
In 2009, the Chairman received a total of EUR 209,088 in salary and other benefits. All emoluments were
monetary.
The Chairman's fixed-term employment contract is valid until the end of the next AGM. The employment contract
and full-time duties related to the Chairmanship can be terminated by the company with immediate effect and
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without severance pay. Should the Chairman of the Board continue in his or her duties part-time, he or she will
receive the monthly and meeting-based remuneration approved by the AGM for work on the Board.
The Chairman does not have a supplementary pension agreement with the company.

CEO

The Board of Directors decides on the CEO's salary, and other remuneration and benefits.
CEO Varelius's remuneration package comprises a monthly salary in accordance with his contract, as well as a
share-based remuneration plan linked to the company's share performance.
Of the CEO's pay, 85 per cent is fixed and a 15 per cent portion is linked to the company's profitability and
revenue targets for each quarter.
Upon the authorisation of the AGM, the CEO's share-based remuneration plan was revised during 2009 by the
Board, entirely replacing the incentive system previously implemented in 2007.
The new system covers the earning periods of 2009 and 2010, entitling the CEO to a maximum bonus equal to the
value of 80,000 company shares for each earning period, representing a maximum total bonus equalling the value
of 160,000 shares. This bonus will begin to accrue progressively when the EPS amounts to EUR 0.41, entitling the
CEO to a value of 20,000 shares. The maximum bonus will become payable if the EPS amounts to EUR 0.69 for the
earning period. The bonus will be paid in a 50/50 combination of shares and cash, without any disposition
restrictions, after the adoption of the financial statements following the close of the respective earning period.
As part of the new remuneration scheme, the CEO received a one-off bonus equalling the value of 100,000 shares
in the 2009 financial year. This bonus was paid in a 50/50 combination of shares and cash, without any disposition
restrictions.
The remuneration received in 2009 by the CEO was also influenced by the Board's decision to rescind the use of
share options as an incentive for management and key personnel, as a consequence of which the CEO and other
key personnel with employment contracts were given the opportunity to exchange options they held according to
the 2005 share option scheme for shares and monetary compensation equal in value. Through this option
conversion scheme, the CEO received 31,250 shares in the company in October 2009, as well as monetary
compensation equal to their value.
In total, CEO Varelius was paid EUR 846,431 in salary and benefits in 2009, of which salary and fringe benefits
account for EUR 264,549 and bonuses for EUR 581,882.
The company may terminate the CEO's service contract with six months' notice. Upon such termination, he will
receive remuneration for the notice period plus severance pay equalling 12 months' salary. The CEO's retirement
age is as stipulated by law, and he has no supplementary pension agreement with the company.

Group Management Team

Based on a proposal submitted by the CEO, the Board of Directors decides on the salary, other remuneration and
other benefits to be paid to members of the Group Management Team.
The total remuneration package comprises a monthly salary plus any share-based remuneration detailed in the
incentive scheme approved for key personnel by the Board.
As with the CEO's pay, 85 per cent of Management Team members' pay is fixed and a 15 per cent portion is linked
to the company's profitability and revenue targets for each quarter.
The share-based remuneration paid to the Management Team is based on an incentive scheme set by the Board
upon the authorisation of the AGM. According to this scheme, the Board decides annually, upon a proposal
submitted by the CEO, on the bonuses to be received by key personnel in relation to the company's performance
and the fulfilment of certain targets set by the Board for each financial year. Bonuses paid according to the system
are made available to the recipients as a four-year annuity, assuming that the recipient is still employed by the
company on each payment date. These bonuses are paid together with January's salary payment as a 50/50
combination of shares and cash. During the 2009 financial year, no bonuses were paid to Management Team
members in accordance with the new incentive scheme.
However, the members of the Team did make use of the opportunity given them to convert options they held, in
accordance with the 2005 share option scheme, into shares and monetary compensation equal in value. As a
consequence of the conversion scheme, members of the Management Team received a total of 17,750 shares in
the company and equivalent monetary compensation in October 2009.
Each Management Team members' retirement age is stipulated by law, and no member has a supplementary
pension agreement with the company.

Management ownership of options and shares
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However, the members of the Team did make use of the opportunity given them to convert options they held, in
accordance with the 2005 share option scheme, into shares and monetary compensation equal in value. As a
consequence of the conversion scheme, members of the Management Team received a total of 17,750 shares in
the company and equivalent monetary compensation in October 2009.
Each Management Team members' retirement age is stipulated by law, and no member has a supplementary
pension agreement with the company.

Management ownership of options and shares
Board of Directors

On 31 December 2009, the members of the Board of Directors owned Digia Plc shares as follows:
Pekka Sivonen
Pertti Kyttälä
Kari Karvinen
Martti Mehtälä
Jari Pasanen
Heikki Mäkijärvi

2,997,613
0
1,586,309
0
0
0

Members of the Board of Directors do not hold any option certificates in Digia. The Group has not granted loans or
guarantees to Board members.

Group Management Team

On 31 December 2009, members of the Group Management Team owned Digia Plc shares as follows:
Juha Varelius
Asko Hakonen
Tommi Laitinen
Antti Lastunen
Kjell Lindqvist
Mika Pälsi

91,250
134,389
41,290
8,250
20,623
0

After the option conversion of October 2009, no Management Team members hold option certificates in Digia. The
Group has not granted loans or guarantees to any members of the Group Management Team.

Internal control
Internal control is responsible for monitoring the management of the company, as well as the legality of its
operations. The Board of Directors annually determines the principles and extent of internal control and may, if
necessary, select an external party to perform internal control functions in the company by separate agreement.
Internal control representatives have similar rights to obtain information within the company as Board members,
stipulated in accordance with the Companies Act. The internal control function reports directly to the Board of
Directors.
The company currently has no separate internal control function and has not appointed an external control party.
Internal control operations are handled by the company's legal and financial functions.

Auditing
Under the Articles of Association, the company has one (1) ordinary auditor that must be an accounting firm
approved by the Central Chamber of Commerce. No specific responsibilities are granted to the auditor; the
auditor's duties are determined in accordance with the Auditing Act and other applicable laws and regulations.
The selected accounting firm appoints a principal auditor to conduct the audit. The principal auditor must change
at least every seven years. An auditor who has been the company's principal auditor for seven years may be
reappointed as the company's principal auditor after an interval of two years.
During the 2009 financial year, Ernst & Young Oy Ab acted as the company's auditor, with Heikki Ilkka, Authorised
Public Accountant, as the principal auditor.
Based on the decision of the 2009 AGM, auditors receive their remuneration and compensation for reasonable
costs against an invoice. During 2009, remuneration paid to auditors for general auditing actions totalled EUR
96,557 and for other consulting services EUR 26,258.

Internal control and risk management related to financial reporting
Control functions and control environment

The company has a controller function tasked with verifying monthly reports. This controller function reports to the
management, the Board of Directors and the Board's Audit Committee regarding the financial performance of the
company and its divisions.
The company uses a reporting system which compiles separate subsidiaries' reports into the consolidated financial
statements . There are written directives for completing the financial reports of subsidiaries. Compliance with
these directives is monitored by the controller function. The company also has the necessary, separate reporting
facilities for monitoring business operations and asset management.
The Group finance unit provides instructions for drawing up financial statements and interim financial statements,
and compiles the consolidated financial statements. The finance unit has centralised control over the group's
funding and asset management, and is in charge of managing interest rate risk.

perform measures unbeknown to at least one other individual. For example, the company's bookkeeping
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The company uses a reporting system which compiles separate subsidiaries' reports into the consolidated financial
statements . There are written directives for completing the financial reports of subsidiaries. Compliance with
these directives is monitored by the controller function. The company also has the necessary, separate reporting
facilities for monitoring business operations and asset management.
The Group finance unit provides instructions for drawing up financial statements and interim financial statements,
and compiles the consolidated financial statements. The finance unit has centralised control over the group's
funding and asset management, and is in charge of managing interest rate risk.

Internal risk control

As a general principle, authorisation is distributed in Digia in such a way that no individual may independently
perform measures unbeknown to at least one other individual. For example, the company's bookkeeping and asset
management are managed by separate persons, and two authorised persons are needed to sign on behalf of the
company.
The Group's business is divided into divisions whose Senior Vice Presidents report to the Chief Executive Officer.
Reporting and supervision are based on annual budgets that are reviewed monthly, on monthly income reporting
and on updates of the latest forecasts.
The SVPs in charge of the divisions report to the Group Management Team on development matters, strategic and
annual planning, business and income monitoring, investments, potential acquisition targets and internal
organisation matters related to their areas of responsibility. Each division has its own management team.
Digia's operational management and supervision take place according to the corporate governance system
described above.
The Group's administration unit is in charge of HR management and policy, as well as properties and the viability
of working conditions in each facility. The legal affairs unit provides instructions for and monitors contracts made
by the company and ensures the legality of the Group's operations.

Communications

The Group's General Counsel is in charge of the company's external communications and their correctness.
External communications include financial reports and other stock exchange communications. The General Counsel
is responsible for the publication of interim reports and financial statements, as well as for actions related to
convening and holding Shareholders' Meetings. Most communications take place through the company's website
and using stock exchange releases.

Risk management

The purpose of the company's risk management process is to identify and manage risks in such a way that the
company is able to meet its strategic and financial targets. Risk management is a continuous process, by which
the major risks are identified, listed and assessed, the key persons in charge of risk management are appointed
and risks are prioritised according to an assessment scale in order to compare the effects and mutual significance
of risks.
The main operational risks handled by Digia's risk management function are customer risk, personnel risk, project
risk, data security risk and goodwill risk.
The company manages customer risk by actively developing its customer portfolio structure and avoiding any
potential risk positions. Personnel risks are assessed and managed using a quarterly goal and development
discussion process for key personnel. To improve personnel commitment, the company strives to improve the
efficiency of internal communications systematically, using monthly personnel events and increasing the visibility
of management. Key project audits are carried out with a view to enhancing project risk management and
securing the success of project deliveries to customers. In addition, the Group's certified quality systems are
regularly evaluated and the Group has increased the efficiency of its project delivery reporting practices in relation
to corporate governance and finance. Data security risk is managed through data security audits and continuous
development of working models, security practices and processes. Risks associated with the integration of
businesses, shared operating models and best practices, as well as their integrated development, are managed
according to plan under the supervision of the Group Management Team. With respect to IFRS-compliant
accounting policies, the Group actively monitors goodwill and the related impairment tests, as part of prudent and
proactive risk management practices within financial management.
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In addition to operational risks, the company is subject to financial risks. Digia Plc's internal and external financing
and the management of financial risks are coordinated by the finance function of the Group's parent company. This
function is responsible for the Group's liquidity, sufficiency of financing, and the management of interest rate and
currency risk. The Group is exposed to several financial risks during the normal course of its business. The
objective of the Group's risk management is to minimise the adverse effects of changes in the financial markets on
the Group's earnings. The primary types of financial risks are interest rate risk, credit risk and funding risk. The
general principles of risk management are approved by the Board of Directors, and the Group's finance function is
responsible for their practical implementation together with the business divisions.

Insider issues
Since 1 March 2000, Digia has adhered to the recommendation governing the insider rules of listed companies
issued by HEX Plc.
Digia divides insiders into public and company-specific insiders. Public insiders include the members of the Board
of Directors, auditors, the CEO, the deputy CEO, and the members of the Group Management Team. Information
on public insiders' holdings and connections is published on the company's website. The company-specific insider
list comprises persons who, due to their position or duties or in any other way, regularly come into the possession
of insider information, which in practice implies the members of the company's divisions' management teams, the
finance unit and all personnel involved in legal affairs and communication.
The company also maintains project-specific insider registers for any corporate acquisition projects and other
ventures that may have an impact on the company's share price.
The General Counsel is in charge of supervising compliance with insider rules and disclosure requirements
pertaining to shareholding.
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The Board of Directors' Report
Markets and Digia's business operations
During the 2009 fiscal year, the company met with success in achieving its objectives by maintaining good
operational profitability and a strong positive cash flow, as well as by lowering its gearing ratio. Despite the
challenging market, the company maintained stable net sales while significantly improving its operational
profitability.
However, due to the EUR 23.8 million one-off goodwill writedown made for the Mobile Solutions segment at the
end of the year, the company ended up making a loss for 2009.
In order to improve long-term operating conditions, the company launched measures aimed at rationalising its site
structure in line with market requirements and concentrating its expertise into fewer but larger units. In this way,
customers' needs will be met more effectively. Cooperation negotiations related to these streamlining measures
were completed in November and led to the termination of 46 employees' employment contracts.
The company repaid EUR 26.3 million in interest-bearing liabilities during the financial year, after which loans from
financial institutions stood at a total of EUR 29.0 million. Having reduced its interest-bearing liabilities, the group
also significantly lowered its net financial expenses.
During the year, the company's international operations focused on China. In addition to the Chengdu office
opened in 2008, the company established a new office in Beijing in the second quarter of 2009. Chinese operations
have progressed according to plan and now form an important part of the company's service strategy. The
Swedish and Russian units also met with the expected success during the year.

Enterprise Solutions
The customers of Digia's Enterprise Solutions segment are companies, organisations and public bodies. The
segment's product and service strategy is based on multi-channel solutions that increase the efficiency of
customers' business operations, and on services that cover the entire product lifecycle. An innovative development
partner for its customers, Digia introduces to the market products, services and business models that employ new
technologies. The segment's core market consists of the Nordic region and Russia, where it seeks to increase its
operations mainly through organic growth.
During the financial year, the Enterprise Solutions segment increased its net sales somewhat and significantly
improved its profitability, although the overall market decreased slightly. Despite the difficult market, the company
met with excellent success, particularly in sales of efficiency-enhancing online information systems and ERP
systems thanks to its industry-specific competence and insightful solutions. In ERP systems, demand grew
especially in systems related to service and customer experience management.

Mobile Solutions
The customers of Digia's Mobile Solutions segment are globally operational smart phone, machine and equipment
manufacturers and telecom operators that utilise Digia's contract engineering services. Some of the pillars of the
segment's operations are competence management and continuous competence development. The segment's core
competence areas are developed in order to match the company's expertise in the latest technologies with
customer needs. On this basis, Digia draws up concrete objectives and measures.
Ongoing technological changes in the market and the introduction of new technologies have led to the
fragmentation of demand into a larger number of specialist areas within the Mobile Solutions segment. In certain
service and competence fields, demand has decreased and in part shifted towards low-cost countries. In addition,
price competition in the service sector has seen continual growth. This, coupled with the general global recession,
led to the failure of the Mobile Solutions segment to meet its targets for revenue and profitability. The beginning of
the year, and particularly the second quarter, were very difficult with a large drop in demand. Thanks to
competence development, an efficient network of sites and enlivened demand, however, the end of the year was
slightly more positive. On the whole, the net sales for the period were, however, significantly lower year on year.
By contrast, good performance during the end of the year brought operative profitability for the whole of 2009 to a
level with the previous year, although the set targets were not met.
Due to the radical changes in the market, the company re-evaluated the operations and related long-term risks of
the Mobile Solutions segment in December, which led to a writedown of EUR 23.8 million in the segment's
goodwill.

Financial indicators
The company's operative business was profitable, and its financial position and solvency were good. However, a
writedown of EUR 23.8 million towards the end of the year caused the company's net result to be negative. The
company's financial indicators are presented in the following table:

Net sales
Operating profit
Operating margin, %

2009
120,335
-7,796
-6%

2008
123,203
13,437
11%

2007
105,839
11,080
10%
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the Mobile Solutions segment in December, which led to a writedown of EUR 23.8 million in the segment's
goodwill.
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Financial indicators
The company's operative business was profitable, and its financial position and solvency were good. However, a
writedown of EUR 23.8 million towards the end of the year caused the company's net result to be negative. The
company's financial indicators are presented in the following table:

Net sales
Operating profit
Operating margin, %
Return on equity, %
Equity ratio, %

2009
120,335
-7,796
-6%
-21%
52%

2008
123,203
13,437
11%
11%
47%

2007
105,839
11,080
10%
9%
47%

Net sales
Digia's consolidated net sales for the 2009 fiscal year were EUR 120.3 million, representing a decrease of 2.3 per
cent (2008: EUR 123.2 million).
The Enterprise Solutions segment posted net sales of EUR 70.8 million during the year, up 1.5 per cent (EUR 69.8
million). The Mobile Solutions segment posted net sales of EUR 49.5 million, down 7.3 per cent (EUR 53.4 million).
Product business accounted for EUR 18.5 million of net sales (EUR 17.7 million), equivalent to 15.4 per cent (14.4
per cent).
Net sales from international operations totalled EUR 9.7 million (EUR 14.2 million), representing 8.1 per cent of net
sales (11.6 per cent). The 2008 comparison figures include EUR 5.4 million in net sales from the Swedish software
company UIQ, which was declared bankrupt in early 2009.

Profitability and financial result
Digia's consolidated profit performance and profitability were significantly affected during the 2009 financial year
by one-off items. These comprised of a EUR 23.8 goodwill writedown and a EUR 0.9 million restructuring provision
related to the closure of sites. The goodwill writedown was entirely attributable to the Mobile Solutions segment.
EUR 0.8 million of the restructuring provision was attributable to Mobile Solutions and EUR 0.1 million to Enterprise
Solutions. The operating profit before one-off items is an indicator of the company's operational profitability.
Digia's operating profit before one-off items for the year was EUR 16.9 million, up by 26.0 per cent year on year
(2008: EUR 13.4 million). Profitability before one-off items was 14.1 per cent (10.9 per cent).
Digia's consolidated operating profit (EBIT) for the fiscal year was EUR -7.8 million (EUR 13.4 million),
representing a decrease of 158.0 per cent. Profitability (EBIT %) was -6.5 per cent (10.9 per cent).
The Enterprise Solutions segment recorded an operating profit before one-off items of EUR 12.3 million (EUR 8.8
million), up 39.5 per cent. Mobile Solutions recorded an operating profit before one-off items of EUR 4.6 million,
which was level with the previous year (EUR 4.6 million). The 2008 figures for Mobile Solutions are negatively
affected by a default credit recorded for UIQ Technologies, which had a EUR -1.8 million effect on the segment's
profitability.
The Enterprise Solutions segment recorded an operating profit of EUR 12.2 million for the year (EUR 8.8 million),
up 38.4 per cent. The operating profit of the Mobile Solutions segment was EUR -20.0 million (EUR 4.6 million),
which was a significant reduction year on year due to the impact of the goodwill writedown and the restructuring
provision.
The Group's net financial expenses for 2009 were EUR 2.3 million (EUR 3.0 million).
Consolidated earnings before tax were EUR -10.1 million (EUR 10.4 million), and net profit was EUR -13.7 million
(EUR 7.4 million).
Earnings per share for the year were EUR -0.67 (EUR 0.36), which was significantly down due to the negative
effect of the goodwill writedown and the restructuring provision.

Financial position and capital expenditure
The Digia Group's balance sheet total at the end of 2009 was EUR 112.8 million (2008 EUR 153.4 million), and the
equity ratio was 52.3 per cent (47.1 per cent). Net gearing was 34.3 per cent (52.8 per cent). At the year-end, the
Group's liquid assets totalled EUR 10.5 million (EUR 18.9 million).
At the end of the period, the Group had interest-bearing liabilities of EUR 30.4 million (EUR 56.9 million). Interestbearing liabilities comprised EUR 29.0 million in loans from financial institutions, EUR 1.3 million in financial leasing
liabilities and EUR 0.2 million in product development loans. During the financial year, the company repaid EUR
26.3 million in loans, reducing its loans from financial institutions to EUR 29.0 million. Loan covenant terms were
modified during the reporting period to stipulate that regardless of the earnings reported for 2009, the company is
allowed to distribute a maximum of EUR 3 million in dividends in 2010. In future years, the maximum dividend
sum will be 30 per cent of the previous year's net operating profit.
The Group carries out annual impairment tests for goodwill and intangible assets with an indefinite useful life, in
accordance with the IAS 36 standard. Impairment testing is described in more detail in the notes to the financial
statements, under Note 15 ‘Intangible assets'.
The company has financing, framework and delivery agreements with special terms and conditions for any
situation in which control of the company changes hands.
The Group's cash flow from business operations for 2009 was positive by EUR 20.2 million (2008: positive by EUR
15.5 million), cash flow from investments was negative by EUR 1.3 million (negative by EUR 5.3 million) and cash
flow from finance was negative by EUR 27.3 million (negative by EUR 3.0 million). Cash flow from finance was
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negatively affected by a substantial repayment of loans totalling EUR 26.3 million, as well as by the payment of
dividends with a total effect of EUR 1.0 million.
The Group's total investments into fixed assets were EUR 1.3 million (EUR 2.5 million). Investments into tangible
assets totalled EUR 1.1 million (EUR 2.0 million).
The return on investment (ROI) for the year was -7.1 per cent (11.3 per cent) and return on equity (ROE) was 21.0 per cent (10.5 per cent).

Report on the extent of research and development
The Group made research and development efforts and engaged in product development in all of its divisions. In
the 2009 fiscal year, the Group's R&D costs totalled EUR 2.6 million (2008: EUR 2.0 million and 2007: EUR 2.2
million), corresponding to 2.2 per cent of net sales (1.6 per cent and 2.1 per cent).

Risk management
The key risks under Digia's risk management in 2009 were customer, personnel, project, data security, integration
and goodwill risks.
Measures for managing customer risks included the active development of the customer structure and the active
prevention of potential risk positions. Personnel risks were assessed and managed using a quarterly goal and
appraisal discussion process in which key personnel participate. To develop personnel commitment, measures
were taken to produce more systematic and effective internal communication through regular personnel events
and increased management visibility. The Group carried out key project audits with a view to enhancing project
risk management and securing the success of project deliveries to customers. In addition, the Group's certified
quality management systems were re-evaluated and approved, and the Group streamlined its project delivery
reporting procedures. In order to manage data security risks, the Group carries out data security audits and
continuously develops operating models, practices and processes that promote data security. The management
team is tasked with managing risks associated with the integration of business operations, unified operating
models and best practices, as well as their integrated development. With respect to IFRS-compliant accounting
policies, the Group actively monitors goodwill and the related impairment tests as a part of prudent and proactive
risk management practices within financial management.

Personnel, management and administration
At the end of 2009, the number of employees totalled 1,471, showing an increase of 134 persons or 10.0 per cent
from the end of the previous year (2008: 1,337 persons). The average number of personnel in 2009 was 1,387, up
by 73 employees or 5.6 per cent (2008: 1,314).
Cumulative employee turnover came to 4.4 per cent in 2009 (9.4 per cent).
Employee indicators:

Average number of personnel
Wages and salaries

2009
1,387
59,907

2008
1,314
58,606

2007
1,116
49,893

Employees by segment, year-end 2009:

Enterprise Solutions
Mobile Solutions
Administration and management

2009
44%
53%
3%

As of the end of the year, 219 employees were working outside of Finland (2008: 123).
The Annual General Meeting (AGM) of 10 March 2009 elected the following Board members: Pekka Sivonen (fulltime Chairman), Pertti Kyttälä (Vice Chairman), Kari Karvinen, Martti Mehtälä, Heikki Mäkijärvi and Jari Pasanen.
Juha Varelius has been Digia's President and CEO from 1 January 2008.
In 2009, Digia's Board of Directors had three committees: the Compensation Committee, the Audit Committee,
and the Nomination Committee.
The Compensation Committee is tasked by the Board with preparing remuneration schemes and monitoring their
effectiveness in meeting Group targets, safeguarding objective decision-making and securing transparent and
systematic remuneration schemes. In 2009, the members of the Compensation Committee were Martti Mehtälä
(Chairman), Pertti Kyttälä and Jari Pasanen. The Committee convened three times in 2009.
According to an agenda approved by the Board, the purpose of the Audit Committee is to assist the Board of
Directors in ensuring that the company's financial reporting, accounting methods, financial statements and other
reported financial information are legitimate, balanced, transparent and clear. The methods for doing so are
itemised in the agenda. In 2010 the Audit Committee was composed of Pertti Kyttälä (Chairman), Martti Mehtälä
and Heikki Mäkijärvi. The committee convened five times in 2009.
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According to an agenda approved by the Board, the Nomination Committee's duty is to prepare proposals for the
Annual General Meeting concerning the number of members of the Board of Directors, the members of the Board
of Directors, the remuneration of the Chairman, Vice Chairman and members of the Board and the remuneration
of the chairmen and members of the committees of the Board of Directors. In 2009, the members of the Audit
Committee were Pekka Sivonen (Chairman) and Kari Karvinen. The committee convened twice in 2009 prior to the
AGM held in the spring.
Ernst & Young Oy, authorised public accountants, are the Group's auditors, with Heikki Ilkka, Authorised Public
Accountant, as the chief auditor.
Digia adheres to the Governance Code for Listed Finnish Companies, issued on 28 October 2008 by the Finnish
Securities Market Association.

Business acquisitions
During the 2009 fiscal year, the Digia Group made no corporate acquisitions.

Group structure and organisation
At the end of the period, the Digia Group consisted of parent company Digia Plc and its active subsidiaries Digia
Finland Ltd (parent company holding 100%), Digia Sweden AB (100%), Digia Estonia Oü (100%), Digia Hong
Kong Ltd (100%) and Sunrise Resources Ltd (100%).
Digia Finland Ltd has the wholly owned active subsidiaries Digia Financial Software Ltd (100%) and Digia Service
Ltd (100%).
Digia Hong Kong Ltd has the wholly owned subsidiary Digia Software (Chengdu) Co. Ltd (100%), operating in
China, which registered a branch in Beijing during the reporting period (18 June 2009).
Sunrise Resources Ltd has an active subsidiary, OOO Digia RUS (100%), in Russia, whose name was changed
towards the end of 2009 (previously Sunrise-r Spb).
Digia's business operations are now divided into two main business segments: Enterprise Solutions and Mobile
Solutions. Enterprise Solutions is divided into ERP and Financial Administration, Digital Services and Integration
Solutions. The Mobile Solutions segment is divided into Contract Engineering Services and User Experience
Services.

Shareholders' meetings
Convening on 10 March 2009, Digia Plc's Annual General Meeting (AGM) adopted the financial statements for
2008, released the Board members and the CEO from liability, determined Board emoluments, resolved to raise
the number of Board members to six (6), and elected the company's Board of Directors for a new term.
The AGM granted the Board authorisation to carry out a share issue, to buy back of the company's own shares and
to decide on the distribution of dividends. On the basis of the authorisations granted by the AGM, the Board of
Directors decided:
 at its meeting on 10 March 2009, to convey own shares as the additional purchase price agreed for

Sunrise Resources Oy;
 at its meeting on 12 June 2009, to pay a dividend of EUR 0.05 per share on the dividend payment date of 3 July

2009; and
 at its meeting on 30 September, to create incentive schemes based on a directed share issue without payment

and shares held by the company for the management and key employees of the company.

Share capital and shares
The nominal share price is EUR 0.10. The number of shares at the end of 2009 totalled 20,853,645.
According to Finnish Central Securities Depository Ltd, Digia had 3,974 shareholders on 31 December 2009. The
ten major shareholders were:
Shareholder
Pekka Sivonen
Ingman Group Oy Ab
Jyrki Hallikainen
Kari Karvinen
Matti Savolainen
Varma Mutual Pension Insurance Company
Veikko Laine Oy
Nordea Bank Finland Plc (nominee-registered)
Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken (nominee-registered)
Etra Trading Oy

Shares and votes
14.4%
10.6%
10.2%
7.6%
6.3%
3.6%
2.8%
1.6%
1.3%
1.0%

Distribution of holdings by number of shares held on 31 December 2009
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Distribution of holdings by number of shares held on 31 December 2009
Number of shares
1-100
101-1,000
1,001-10,000
10,001-100,000
100,001-1,000,000
1,000,001-3,000,000

Holding (%)
20.3%
55.1%
21.6%
2.4%
0.5%
0.1%

Shares and votes
0.3%
5.0%
11.6%
12.9%
21.1%
49.1%

Holding (%)
5.2%
0.3%
0.1%
0.3%
93.6%
0.5%

Shares (%)
19.5%
4.8%
3.7%
0.4%
70.2%
1.4%

Shareholding by sector on 31 December 2009
Companies
Financial institutions and insurance companies
Non-corporate public sector
Non-profit organisations
Households
Foreign holding

Stock options granted
Stock options

The Group has had stock option schemes since 15 September 1999. Stock options granted after 2003 were
recognised in the financial statements for 2007 and 2008 in accordance with the standard IFRS 2, Share-Based
Payment. Stock options expire if they are not exercised during a period separately defined in the option scheme.
Stock options are also lost if the employee resigns from the company before the right is vested.
During 2009, the Group had a stock option scheme from 2005, but the dilution effect of its outstanding warrants
on 31 December 2009 was only a maximum of 0.1 per cent. The stock options are described in more detail in the
notes to the financial statements, under Note 20 'Share-based payment'.

Share-based bonuses

In addition to stock option schemes, the company offers share-based bonuses as part of its key personnel
commitment and incentive scheme.
The share-based incentive system of the CEO entitles the CEO to a maximum bonus equal to the value of 80,000
company shares for the earning periods 2009 and 2010, meaning a maximum total bonus equalling the value of
160,000 shares.
The incentive system for key personnel offers the personnel in question the possibility of receiving shares in Digia
Plc for each period in which specific targets are met. The Board of Directors decides annually on the earning
criteria and bonus for each person covered by the scheme. For 2009, certain key personnel were granted a bonus
totalling the value of 200,000 shares, payable as a 50/50 combination of shares and cash, in four equal annual
instalments beginning in January 2010.
The payment of bonuses according to the share-based incentive schemes is subject to the employee in question
being employed by the company on the payment date.

Reported share performance on NASDAQ OMX Helsinki in 2009
Digia Plc shares were in 2009 listed on the Nordic Exchange under Information Technology IT Services. The
company's short name is DIG1V. The lowest reported share quotation was EUR 1.39 and the highest was EUR
3.88. The share closed at EUR 3.43 on the last trading day. The trade-weighted average was EUR 2.72. The
Group's market capitalisation was EUR 71,528,002 at the end of the period.
The company received the following flagging notifications during the reporting period:
 Jyrki Hallikainen announced on 6 March 2009 that his holding in the company had exceeded the 5% flagging

threshold and amounted to 9.12% of the company's shares and votes.
 Jyrki Hallikainen announced on 27 March 2009 that his holding in the company had exceeded the 10% flagging

threshold and amounted to 10.24% of the company's shares and votes.
 Pekka Sivonen announced on 9 November 2009 that his holding in the company had fallen below the 15%

flagging threshold and amounted to 14.37% of the company's shares and votes.
 The Ingman Group announced on 9 November 2009 that the total holding of the Group and its controlled

entities had exceeded the 10% flagging threshold and was 10.48% of the company's shares and votes.

Risks and uncertainties
Digia's short-term uncertainties are related to any major changes occurring in the company's core markets. The
economic recession, although it is showing signs of yielding, may still have an impact on customers' investment
decisions and liquidity, and therefore also on the company's net sales and profit.
In addition, due to the recent writedown of goodwill relating to the Mobile Solutions segment, the company needs
to pay special attention to said segment's future development.
Furthermore, the growth in customer project sizes increases the risks related to projects and their profitability.

Prospects for the future
Digia's main objective for 2010 is to focus strongly on creating growth conditions while maintaining a strong
positive cash flow and a good level of profitability.
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Furthermore, the growth in customer project sizes increases the risks related to projects and their profitability.

Prospects for the future
Digia's main objective for 2010 is to focus strongly on creating growth conditions while maintaining a strong
positive cash flow and a good level of profitability.
The company will continue to pursue the conservative internationalisation of its business operations, making a
concerted effort to seek opportunities for enlarging and developing its product business. Furthermore, it will step
up its operations in countries with favourable cost levels, especially China.
The company expects the global economic uncertainty to recede gradually, and the IT market to grow moderately
as compared to 2009. The company predicts organic growth of its net sales, at a rate at least equal to the general
market rate, and the maintenance of solid profitability.
Digia's long-term focus is first and foremost on strengthening its organic growth and maintaining good cash flow.
The company will continue to work on improving sales and invest into further increasing the efficiency of
operations.

Major events after the balance sheet date
Proposal for dividend distribution

The unrestricted equity in the balance sheet of the Company as per December 31, 2009 amounted to EUR
41,553,350.95 of which the net result for the financial year amounts to EUR 3,927,765.97. The Board proposes to
the Annual General Meeting that based on the balance sheet to be adopted for the accounting period ended
December 31, 2009 a dividend of EUR 0.14 per share will be paid. The dividend will be paid to shareholders
registered in the Register of Shareholders held by Euroclear Finland Ltd on the record date March 8, 2010. The
dividend will be paid on 15 March 2010.
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Consolidated Income Statement (IFRS)
€
Net sales
Other operating income
Materials and services
Depreciation and amortisation
Other operating expenses

Note

1 Jan-31 Dec 2009

1 Jan-31 Dec 2008

1,3

120,335,203.72

123,203,397.26

6

219,677.35
-7,996,473.53
-28,051,336.80
-92,303,126.32
-128,131,259.30

59,582.19
-10,048,668.36
-4,762,647.76
-95,014,258.54
-109,765,992.47

-7,796,055.58

13,437,404.79

118,641.56
-2,441,881.65
-2,323,240.09

867,380.05
-3,898,703.21
-3,031,323.16

-10,119,295.67

10,406,081.63

-3,544,609.99

-2,997,107.65

-13,663,905.66

7,408,973.98

128,278.79
-13,535,626.87

-242,428.10
7,166,545.88

-13,663,905.66
-13,663,905.66

7,408,973.98
7,408,973.98

-13,535,626.87
-13 535,626.87

7,166,545.88
7,166,545.88

-0.67
-0.67

0.36
0.36

9
4,5,7,8,10

Operating profit
Financial income
Financial expenses

11
11

Earnings before tax
Income taxes
Net profit
Components of statement of comprehensive income:
Exchange differences on translating foreign operations
Total comprehensive income
Distribution of net profit:
Parent company shareholders
Minority interest
Distribution of comprehensive income:
Parent company shareholders
Minority interest
Basic earnings per share, undiluted
Diluted earnings per share

12
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Consolidated Balance Sheet (IFRS)
€

Note

31 Dec 2009

31 Dec 2008

15
15
14
27

65,544,601.41
11,032,708.45
2,616,735.36
627,964.34
202,913.87
1,211,629.53
81,236,552.96

89,648,931.01
13,396,315.85
3,125,615.77
627,964.34
1,756,074.77
108,554,901.74

21.048,287.42
10,468,665.55
31,516,952.97

25,957,433.99
18,878,846.32
44,836,280.31

112,753,505.93

153,391,182.05

2,085,364.50
7,899,485.80
5,203,821.24
35,447,817.82
-125,971.54
21,337,119.32
-13,663,905.66
58,183,731.48

2,085,364.50
7,899,485.80
5,203,821.24
34,938,181.34
-254,250.33
14,801,015.95
7,408,973.98
72,082,592.48

58,183,731.48

72,082,592.48

16
22

2,672,317.82
23,601,334.38
26,273,652.20

3,137,752.31
935,247.99
4,073,000.30

24

8,767,349.99
551,269.24
1,051,808.00
11,098,259.86
6,827,435.16
28,296,122.25

8,020,647.30
2,082,505.16
431,506.80
10,686,179.47
56,014,750.54
77,235,589.27

54,569,774,45

81,308,589.57

112,753,505.93

153,391,182.05

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Goodwill
Other intangible assets
Tangible assets
Available-for-sale investments
Long-term receivables
Deferred tax assets
Current assets
Accounts receivable and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

16

17
18

Total assets
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity attributable to parent company
shareholders
Share capital
Premium fund
Other reserves
Unrestricted invested shareholders' equity reserve
Translation difference
Retained earnings
Net profit

19

Total shareholders' equity
Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities
Interest-bearing liabilities
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and other liabilities
Income tax liabilities
Provisions
Accrued expenses
Interest-bearing liabilities
Total liabilities
Total shareholders' equity and liabilities

21
24
22
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (IFRS)
€ 000

1 Jan-31 Dec 2009

1 Jan-31 Dec 2008

-13,664
33,919
6,817
-1,929
91
-5,002
20,232

7,409
10,821
1,321
-3,533
596
-1,141
15,473

-1,342
-1,342

-2,512
-2,803
-5,315

-33
-58,242
-18,000
5,000
45,000
-1,024
-27,300

7
-951
-33
-2,041
-3,019

Change in cash and cash equivalents

-8,410

7,140

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

18,879
-8,410
10,469

11,739
7,140
18,879

Cash flow from operations:
Net profit
Adjustments to profit for the period
Change in working capital
Interest paid
Interest income
Taxes paid
Cash flow from operating activities
Cash flow from investments:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets
Acquisition from subsidiaries
Cash flow from investments
Cash flow from financing:
Paid share issue
Purchase of own shares
Repayment of short-term loans
Repayments of long-term loans
Withdrawals of short-term loans
Withdrawals of long-term loans
Dividends paid and other profit distribution
Cash flow from financing
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Changes in Shareholders' Equity

€ 000
Shareholders' equity, 1 Jan 2008
Available-for-sale investments
Gains/losses on fair valuation
Amount recognised through profit or loss
Taxes associated with items recognised or
derecognised in shareholders' equity
Net profit (+) / loss (-)
Total income and expenses recognised
during the period
Increase of share capital
Distribution of dividends
Own share redemption fund
Share-based transactions settled in
shareholders' equity
Stock options exercised
Items of comprehensive income
Shareholders' equity, 31 Dec 2008

€ 000
Shareholders' equity, 1 Jan 2009
Available-for-sale investments
Gains/losses on fair valuation
Amount recognised through profit or loss
Taxes associated with items recognised or
derecognised in shareholders' equity
Net profit (+) / loss (-)
Total income and expenses recognised
during the period
Increase of share capital
Distribution of dividends
Own share redemption fund
Share-based transactions settled in
shareholders' equity
Stock options exercised
Items of comprehensive income
Shareholders' equity, 31 Dec 2009

Proportion belonging to parent company shareholders
Unrestricted
invested
shareholders'
equity OtherTranslationRetained
SharePremium
reservereserves difference earnings
capital
fund
Total
2,085 7,893
38,111 5,204
-12 15,322
68,602
-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

7,409

7,409

-

7
-

-2,041
-1,131

-

-

7,409
169

7,409
7
-2,041
-962

-

7

-3,172

-

-242
-242

-690
-521

-690
-242
-3,928

2,085

7,899

34,938

5,204

-254 22,210

72,083

Unrestricted
invested
shareholders'
equity OtherTranslationRetained
SharePremium
reservereserves difference earnings
capital
fund
2,085 7,899
34,938 5,204
-254 22,210

Total
72,083

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

- -13,664

-13,664

-

-

510

-

--13,664
- -1,024
-169

-13,664
-1,024
340

-

-

510

-

128
128

321
-873

321
128
-235

2,085

7,899

35,448

5,204

-126

7,673

58,184

Distributable funds on 31 December
€ 000
Unrestricted invested shareholders' equity reserve
Retained earnings
Net profit
Total

2009
Parent
35,448
2,178
3,928
41,553

2008
Parent
34,938
801
2,188
37,927
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Basic Information of the Group and Accounting
policies
Basic information of the company
Digia Plc is a modern, agile software company providing and implementing ICT products, services and technologies
for its customers to improve their competitive advantage – solutions for the needs of a transforming world.
Solutions that are independent of the terminals and technologies used provide true freedom and enable the right
information to reach the right people in the right place at the right time.
As a comprehensive solution provider and system integrator, Digia provides its customers with an extensive range
of IT products and services, strong software expertise in mobile environments and extensive industry knowledge.
Headquartered in Finland, the company operates globally and employs more than 1,400 professionals. Digia is
listed on NASDAQ OMX Helsinki.
The Group's parent company is Digia Plc. The parent company is domiciled in Helsinki and its registered office is at
Hiomotie 19, 00380 Helsinki.

Accounting policies
Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in compliance with the International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS), observing the IAS and IFRS standards, as well as SIC and IFRIC interpretations valid on 31
December 2009.

Consolidation principles
The consolidated financial statements include the parent company Digia Plc and subsidiaries in which the parent
company directly or indirectly controls more than 50 per cent of the votes associated with shares or over which the
parent company otherwise exercises control. Acquired subsidiaries are consolidated using the cost method,
according to which the assets and liabilities of the acquired entity are measured at fair value at the time of
acquisition, and the remaining difference between the acquisition price and the acquired shareholders' equity
constitutes goodwill. In accordance with the exemption permitted by IFRS 1, acquisitions prior to the IFRS
transition date have not been adjusted to correspond to the IFRS principles. Their values remain unchanged from
Finnish Accounting Standards. Subsidiaries acquired during the fiscal period are included in the consolidated
financial statements as of the date of acquisition, while divested subsidiaries are included until the date of
divestment. Intra-Group transactions, receivables, liabilities, unrealised margins and internal profit distribution are
eliminated in the consolidated financial statements. The profit for the period is divided between the parent
company shareholders and the minority. The minority interest is also presented as a separate item within
shareholders' equity.
From 1 January 2009, the Group has applied the following new or amended standards and interpretations:
 Revised IAS Presentation of Financial Statements. The changes apply mainly to the presentation of statements

of comprehensive income and statements of changes in equity disclose. The earnings per share calculation
principle remains unchanged.
 Changes to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures – improving disclosures about financial instruments. The

change had no effect on the consolidated financial statements.
 Revised IAS 23 Borrowing Costs. The change had no effect on the consolidated financial statements.
 Changes to IFRS 2 Share-Based Payment – vesting conditions and cancellations. The change had no effect on

the consolidated financial statements.
 Improvements to the IFRS standards. The changes had no significant effect on the consolidated financial

statements.
 IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes. The Group had no customer loyalty arrangements as referred to in the

interpretation, and thus the interpretation had no effect on the consolidated financial statements.
 IFRIC 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate. The Group does not operate in the construction

industry, so the interpretation had no effect on the consolidated financial statements.
 Changes to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation. The

adoption of the updated standards had no effect on the consolidated financial statements.
 Change to IFRIC 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives and IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and

Measurement. The changes had no effect on the consolidated financial statements.
 IFRIC 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation. The interpretation had no effect on the

consolidated financial statements.
 IFRS 8 Operating Segments, according to which the presented segment information must be based on intra-

Group reporting made to the management, and on its accounting policies. The adoption of IFRS 8 had no
significant effect on the segment information presented, because the segment information disclosed previously
was already based on an intra-Group reporting structure.
The preparation of financial statements under IFRS means that Group management must necessarily make certain
estimates and judgments concerning the application of the accounting principles. Information about such
considerations made by the management when applying the corporate accounting principles with the greatest
influence on the figures presented in the financial statements are explained under the item 'Accounting policies
requiring consideration by management and crucial factors of uncertainty associated with estimates'.
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The preparation of financial statements under IFRS means that Group management must necessarily make certain
estimates and judgments concerning the application of the accounting principles. Information about such
considerations made by the management when applying the corporate accounting principles with the greatest
influence on the figures presented in the financial statements are explained under the item 'Accounting policies
requiring consideration by management and crucial factors of uncertainty associated with estimates'.

Segment reporting
Since the beginning of 2009, a new organisation has been in force in the company, merging the company's sales,
products, services and competencies. Digia's business operations are now divided into two main business
segments: Enterprise Solutions and Mobile Solutions. Enterprise Solutions comprises ERP and Financial
Administration, Digital Services and Integration Solutions. The Mobile Solutions segment comprises Contract
Engineering Services and User Experience Services. The divisions have been specified as primary reporting
segments in accordance with IFRS 8 Segment Reporting. Geographical areas have been specified as secondary
segments.

Foreign currency translation
Items referring to the earnings and financial position of the Group's units are recognised in the currency that is the
main currency of the unit's primary operating environment ('functional currency'). The consolidated financial
statements are given in euros, which is the operating and presentation currency of the parent company.
Receivables and liabilities denominated in foreign currency have been converted into euro at the exchange rate in
effect on the balance sheet date. Gains and losses arising from foreign currency transactions are recognised
through profit or loss. Foreign exchange gains and losses from operations are included in the corresponding items
above operating profit.
The income statements of non-Finnish consolidated companies have been converted into euro at the weighted
average exchange rate for the period, and their balance sheets have been converted at the exchange rate quoted
on the balance sheet date. Translation differences arising from the application of the cost method are treated as
items adjusting consolidated shareholders' equity.

Tangible assets
Property, plant and equipment (PPE) is carried at cost less accumulated planned depreciation and impairment.
Assets are depreciated over their estimated useful lives. Depreciation is not booked for land areas. Estimated
useful lives are as follows:
Buildings and structures
Machinery and equipment

25 years
3–8 years

The residual value and useful life of assets is reviewed on each balance sheet date and, if necessary, adjusted to
reflect any changes in expected economic value.
Capital gains and losses on elimination and the transfer of tangible assets are included either in other operating
income or expenses.

Government grants
Grants received as compensation for costs are recognised in the income statements at the same time as the
expenses related to the target of the grant are recognised as expenses. Grants of this kind are presented under
other operating income. Government grants attributable to fixed assets are recognised as deductions in the value
of intangible fixed assets. The grants are recognised as income over the life of the asset through reduced
amortisation.

Intangible assets
Goodwill

Goodwill corresponds to the proportion of the acquisition cost of an entity acquired after 1 January 2004 that
exceeds the Group's share of the fair value of the entity's net assets on the date of acquisition. The acquisition
cost also includes other direct expenses related to the acquisition, such as professionals' fees. The goodwill for
business combinations prior to 2004 corresponds to goodwill in accordance with previous accounting standards
that has been used as the deemed cost. A portion of the goodwill of acquired entities is allocated to customer
relationships or products originating in acquisitions and recognised in intangible assets. The portions of acquisition
cost recognised in intangible assets are amortised over their useful life.
No regular amortisation is booked on goodwill but it is tested annually for impairment. For this purpose, goodwill is
allocated to cash generating units. Goodwill is recognised at the original cost from which the impairment is
deducted. Any adjustments of acquisition cost are booked no later than 12 months after the date of acquisition.

Research and development costs

Research costs are recognised as expenses in the income statement. Development costs arising from the design of
new products are capitalised as intangible assets in the statement of financial position until the product is ready for
commercial utilisation and future economic benefit is expected from the product. Amortisation begins once the
product is ready for commercial utilisation. The useful life of capitalised development expenses is 2 to 5 years,
during which time the capitalised assets will be recognised as expenses by straight-line amortisation.
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product is ready for commercial utilisation. The useful life of capitalised development expenses is 2 to 5 years,
during which time the capitalised assets will be recognised as expenses by straight-line amortisation.

Other intangible assets

Patents, trademarks and licences with a limited useful life are booked in the statement of financial position and
recognised as expenses in the income statement by straight-line amortisation over their useful life. Amortisation is
not booked on intangible assets with an unlimited useful life but they are tested annually for impairment.

Leases
Leases on property, plant and equipment in which the Group bears a significant part of the risks and benefits
characteristic of ownership are categorised as finance leases. A finance lease is recognised in the balance sheet at
the fair value of the leased asset at the start of the lease period or at a lower current value of minimum lease
payments. Assets acquired on finance leases are depreciated over the asset's useful life or the lease period,
whichever is shorter. Lease obligations are included in interest-bearing debt. Leases in which the risks and benefits
characteristic of ownership remain with the lessor are treated as operating leases. Leases payable on the basis of
other leases are recognised as expenses in the income statement in equal instalments over the lease period.

Financing assets and liabilities
Financing assets are divided into receivables and liabilities, either as held-to-maturity, held-for-trading, or
available-for-sale. Financial instruments are at first measured at fair value, with any fees deducted. Usually, the
fair value corresponds with the sum paid or received for the instrument. Loans are included under non-current and
current liabilities. Interest expenses and fees are stated in the income statement during the loan period, on an
accrual basis using the effective yield method, and they are recognised as a cost on the period during which they
are incurred.

Accounts receivable and other receivables
Accounts receivable and other receivables are measured at nominal value. A provision for impairment of accounts
receivable is established when there is evidence based on a case-by-case risk assessment that the Group will not
be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of receivables.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and withdrawable bank deposits and other short-term investments.
Accounts with a credit facility are treated as short-term loans under current liabilities.

Impairment
On each balance sheet date, the Group estimates whether there is evidence that the value of an asset may have
been impaired. If there is evidence of impairment, the amount recoverable from the asset is estimated. In
addition, the recoverable amount is estimated annually on the following assets regardless of whether there is an
indication of impairment or not: goodwill, and intangible assets with an unlimited useful life. The need for
impairment is reviewed at the level of cash generating units, which refers to the lowest level of unit that is mainly
independent of other units and whose cash flows can be separated from other cash flows. If the carrying amount
exceeds the recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recognised in the income statement. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill will not be revoked under any circumstances.

Employee benefits
Pension liabilities

The Group's pension schemes are arranged through a pension insurance company. The pension schemes are
mainly defined contribution plans, and payments are recognised in the income statement during the period to
which the payment applies. The Finnish Employees' Pensions Act (TyEL) pension scheme was treated as a defined
contribution plan in 2008 and 2009.

Share-based payments

The Group has various incentive schemes where payments are made either in equity instruments or in cash. The
benefits granted through these arrangements are measured at fair value on the date of their being granted and
recognised as expenses in the income statement evenly during the vesting period. Correspondingly, in
arrangements where the payment is made in cash, the liability and the change in its fair value is recognised as a
liability on an accrual basis. The impact of these arrangements on the financial results is shown in the income
statements under the cost of employee benefits.
The cost determined at the time of granting the options is based on the Group's estimate of the amount of options
that are expected to become vested at the end of the vesting period. The Group updates the assumption of the
final amount of options on each balance sheet date. Changes in the estimates are entered in the income
statement. The fair value of option arrangements is determined on the basis of the Black-Scholes option pricing
model. Non-market-based conditions, such as profitability and certain growth targets, are not taken into account
when determining the fair value of an option, but they affect the estimate of the final amount of options.
When options are exercised, the payments received net of any transaction costs are recognised in shareholders'
equity. Before the entry into force of the new Limited Liability Companies Act on 1 September 2006, payments
received from share subscriptions based on granted options were recognised in accordance with the terms and
conditions of these arrangements in the share capital and share premium account. In the option arrangements
decided after the entry into force of the new Limited Liability Companies Act, proceeds received net of any
eventual transaction costs are recognised in accordance with the terms and conditions of these arrangements in
the unrestricted shareholders' equity reserve.

Provisions
A provision is recognised when the Group has a legal or factual obligation based on previous events, the realisation
of a payment obligation is probable and the amount of the obligation can be reliably estimated.
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conditions of these arrangements in the share capital and share premium account. In the option arrangements
decided after the entry into force of the new Limited Liability Companies Act, proceeds received net of any
eventual transaction costs are recognised in accordance with the terms and conditions of these arrangements in
the unrestricted shareholders' equity reserve.

Provisions
A provision is recognised when the Group has a legal or factual obligation based on previous events, the realisation
of a payment obligation is probable and the amount of the obligation can be reliably estimated.
A restructuring provision is recognised when the Group has prepared a detailed restructuring plan and started its
implementation and disclosed the matter. The provision is based on expected actual costs, such as agreed
compensation for termination of employment.
A provision is recognised for unprofitable agreements if the costs necessary for fulfilling the obligations exceed the
benefits available from the agreement.
A guarantee provision is recognised once a product or service subject to guarantee terms has been sold and the
amount of potential guarantee costs can be estimated with sufficient accuracy.

Shares, dividends and shareholders' equity
Dividends proposed by the Board of Directors will not be deducted from distributable shareholders' equity before
the AGM´s approval has been received. Immediate costs relating to the acquisition of Digia Plc's own shares are
recognised as deductions in shareholders' equity.

Earnings per share
Earnings per share are calculated by dividing the period's earnings after tax belonging to the parent company's
shareholders by the weighted average of shares outstanding during the fiscal period, excluding own shares
acquired by Digia Plc. Diluted earnings per share are calculated assuming that all subscription rights and options
have been exercised by the beginning of the next fiscal year. In addition to the weighted average of shares
outstanding, the denominator also includes shares received from subscription rights and options assumed to have
been exercised. The subscription rights and options assumed to have been exercised will not be taken into account
in earnings per share if their actual price exceeds their average price during the fiscal year.

Income taxes
Taxes recognised in the income statement include taxes based on taxable income for the financial period,
adjustments to taxes for previous periods, as well as changes in deferred taxes. Tax based on taxable income for
the period is calculated using the corporate income tax rate applicable in each country. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are recognised for temporary differences between the taxable values and book values of asset and
liability items. The biggest temporary differences arise from amortisation of fixed assets, unused tax losses, and
the revaluation of financial and derivative instruments at the fair price resulting from the purchase. Deferred taxes
are determined on the basis of the tax rate enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax receivables are
recognised up to the probable amount of taxable income in the future, against which the temporary difference can
be utilised.

Revenue recognition
Work carried out by people is recognised monthly in accordance with progress. Long-term projects with a fixed
price are recognised on the basis of their percentage of completion once the outcome of the project can be reliably
estimated. The percentage of completion is determined as the proportion of costs arising from work performed for
the project up to the date of review in the total estimated project costs. If estimates of the project change, the
recognised sales and profit/margin are amended in the period during which the change becomes known and can
be estimated for the first time. Any loss expected from a project is recognised as an expense immediately after the
matter has been noticed. Licensing income is recognised in accordance with the factual substance of the
agreement. Maintenance fees are allocated over the agreement period.

Accounting policies requiring consideration by management and crucial factors of uncertainty
associated with estimates
Estimates and assumptions regarding the future have to be made during the preparation of the financial
statements, and the outcome may differ from the estimates and assumptions. Furthermore, the application of
accounting policies requires consideration. These estimates and assumptions are based on historical experience
and other justifiable assumptions that are believed to be reasonable in the circumstances that serve as a
foundation for evaluating the items included in the financial statements. The estimates mainly concern the
following items:

Impairment testing

The Group carries out annual impairment testing of goodwill and intangible assets with an unlimited useful life and
evaluates any indications of impairment as described above in the accounting policies. Recoverable amounts from
cash generating units are determined as calculations based on value in use. The preparation of these calculations
requires the use of estimates.
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Recognition as income and expenses

As described in the revenue recognition policies, the revenue and costs of a long-term project are recognised as
income and expenses on the basis of percentage of completion once the outcome of the project can be reliably
estimated. Recognition associated with the degree of completion is based on estimates of expected income and
expenses of the project and reliable measurement and estimation of project progress. If estimates of the project's
outcome change, the recognised sales and profit/margin are amended in the period during which the change
becomes known and can be estimated for the first time. Any loss expected from a project is immediately
recognised as an expense.

Financial risks
Financial risk management consists, for instance, of the planning and monitoring of solvency of liquid assets, the
management of investments, receivables and liabilities denominated in a foreign currency, and the management of
interest rate risks on non-current interest-bearing liabilities.
In accordance with the company's investment policy, cash and cash equivalents are invested only in low-risk short
rate funds and bank deposits. The Group's policy defines creditworthiness requirements for customers in order to
minimise the amount of credit losses. A sufficient provision was made for uncertain accounts receivable at the end
of the fiscal period. The Group's operative cash flow has developed favourably during the year, and thus the
Group's solvency has also remained good. The most significant currency risks relating to accounts receivable or
accounts payable are managed by means of forward foreign exchange contracts. At the end of the fiscal year, the
company did not have any such forward contract in force. Interest rate trends are monitored systematically in
different bodies within the company, and possible interest rate risks hedges are made with the appropriate
instruments. At the end of the fiscal year, the company had no such hedging instruments in force.

Application of new and amended IFRS standard

The IASB has published the following new or amended standards and interpretations that are not yet effective and
thus have not yet been applied by the Group. The Group will introduce each standard and interpretation as of its
effective date or, if the effective date is some other date than the first day of the fiscal period, as of the beginning
of the fiscal period following the effective date.
 IFRS 3 Business Combinations (valid for fiscal years beginning 1 July 2009 or later). According to the

transitional provisions, business combinations where the acquisition date is earlier than the standard's effective
date are not adjusted.
 IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements (valid for fiscal years beginning 1 July 2009 or later).

According to the revised standard, subsidiaries' losses can be attributed to minorities even if they exceed the
minority investment.
 IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement - Eligible Hedged Items (valid for fiscal years

beginning 1 July 2009 or later). The changes apply to hedge accounting. The Group does not expect the change
to have a significant effect on upcoming consolidated financial statements.
 IFRS 9 Financing Activities. The standard has not yet been approved for application within the EU.
 IFRIC 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners (valid for fiscal years beginning 1 July 2009 or later). The

interpretation is not expected to affect upcoming consolidated financial statements. The standard has not yet
been approved for application within the EU.
 IFRIC 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers (valid for fiscal years beginning 1 July 2009 or later). The new

interpretation will not affect upcoming consolidated financial statements. The interpretation has not yet been
approved for application within the EU.
 Improvements to IFRS standards (mainly valid for fiscal years beginning 1 January 2010 or later). The changes

are not significant for upcoming consolidated financial statements. The changed standard has not yet been
approved for application within the EU.
 IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation (valid for fiscal years beginning 1 January 2010 or later). The

changes are not significant for upcoming consolidated financial statements. The changed IAS 32 standard has
not yet been approved for application within the EU.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
1. Segment informartion 2. Acquired business operations 3. Long-term projects 4. One-off expenses 5. Auditors'
fees
6. Other operating income 7. Other operating expenses 8. Product development 9. Depreciation, amortisation and
impairment 10. Personnel expenses 11. Financial income and expenses 12. Income taxes 13. Earnings per share
14. Property, plant and equipment 15. Intangible assets 16. Deferred tax assets and liabilities 17. Accounts
receivable and other receivables 18. Cash and cash equivalents 19. Notes on share capital 20. Share-based
payments
21. Provisions 22. Loans from financial institutions 23. Due dates of finance lease liabilities 24. Non-interest
bearing liabilities 25. Operating leases 26. Contingent liabilities 27. The group's shares and holdings 28. Related
1. Segment informartion 2. Acquired business operations 3. Long-term projects 4. One-off expenses 5. Auditors'
party transactions 29. Management of financing risks 30. The group's key financial ratios
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Digia's business segments are Enterprise Solutions and Mobile Solutions.
In the Enterprise Solutions segment, no single customer accounted for more than 10 per cent of the consolidated
net sales. The Mobile Solutions segment's major customer is Nokia, which accounted for more than 10 per cent of
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the consolidated
net sales in the fiscal year.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

€ 000
2009
2008
OperatingSolutions
profit before extraordinary items
Enterprise
70,841
69,796
Mobile Solutions
49,494
53,408
€ 000
2009
2008
Group total
120,335
123,203
Enterprise Solutions
12,301
8,821
Mobile
Solutions Solutions segment, no single customer accounted for more than4,634
4,617
In
the Enterprise
10 per cent of the consolidated
Group
total
16,936
13,437
net
sales.
The Mobile Solutions segment's major customer is Nokia, which accounted
for more than 10 per
cent of
the consolidated net sales in the fiscal year.
Digia's consolidated profitability was significantly affected by extraordinary non-recurrent items comprising a EUR
23.8 goodwill writedown and a EUR 0.9 million restructuring provision related to the closure of sites. The goodwill
Operating
profit
beforeattributable
extraordinary
items
writedown was
entirely
to the
Mobile Solutions segment. EUR 0.8 million of the restructuring provision
was attributable to Mobile Solutions and EUR 0.1 million to Enterprise Solutions. The operating profit before
€ 000
2009
2008
extraordinary items is an indicator of the company's operational profitability.
Enterprise Solutions
12,301
8,821
Mobile Solutions
4,634
4,617
Operating
Group
total profit (EBIT)
16,936
13,437
€ 000 consolidated profitability was significantly affected by extraordinary non-recurrent
2009 items comprising
2008
Digia's
a EUR
Enterprise
Solutions
23.8
goodwill
writedown and a EUR 0.9 million restructuring provision related to12,211
the closure of sites. The 8,821
goodwill
Mobile Solutions
-20,007
writedown
was entirely attributable to the Mobile Solutions segment. EUR 0.8 million
of the restructuring 4,617
provision
Group
total
13,437
was
attributable
to Mobile Solutions and EUR 0.1 million to Enterprise Solutions. -7,796
The operating profit before
extraordinary items is an indicator of the company's operational profitability.

Assets
Operating
profit (EBIT)
€ 000
€ 000
Enterprise Solutions
Enterprise Solutions
Mobile Solutions
Mobile Solutions
Unallocated
Group total
Group total

2009
2009
61,240
12,211
39,205
-20,007
12,308
-7,796
112,753

2008
2008
64,777
8,821
67,349
4,617
21,266
13,437
153,391

Assets
The assets of the Enterprise Solutions segment include goodwill arising from the acquisition of Digia Sweden AB
(formerly Capital C AB), Samstock Ltd and Sentera Plc, as well as the part of the goodwill arising from the
€ 000
2009
2008
acquisition of Yomi Software Ltd that is attributable to the operations of the segment. The assets of the Mobile
Enterprise
Solutionsinclude goodwill arising from the acquisition of Digia Inc. and61,240
Solutions segment
Sunrise Resources Ltd,64,777
as well as
Mobile
Solutions
67,349 of
the part
of the goodwill arising from the acquisition of Yomi Software Ltd that is39,205
attributable to the operations
Unallocated
12,308
21,266
the segment. The goodwill items are described in more detail in Note 15.
Group total
112,753
153,391
The most significant unallocated asset item comprises investments and cash equivalents treated from the
viewpoint
level.Solutions segment include goodwill arising from the acquisition of Digia Sweden AB
The
assetsof
ofthe
theGroup
Enterprise
(formerly Capital C AB), Samstock Ltd and Sentera Plc, as well as the part of the goodwill arising from the
acquisition
Liabilities of Yomi Software Ltd that is attributable to the operations of the segment. The assets of the Mobile
Solutions segment include goodwill arising from the acquisition of Digia Inc. and Sunrise Resources Ltd, as well as
€ 000
2009
2008of
the
part of the goodwill arising from the acquisition of Yomi Software Ltd that is attributable
to the operations
the
segment.
The goodwill items are described in more detail in Note 15.
Enterprise
Solutions
11,139
10,975
Mobile Solutions
10,329
10,223
Unallocated
33,101 treated from the
60,111
The
most significant unallocated asset item comprises investments and cash equivalents
Group total
54,570
81,309
viewpoint
of the Group level.

Liabilities
The most significant item within unallocated liabilities consists of a long-term bank loan.
€ 000
Depreciation
and amortisation
Enterprise
Solutions
Mobile Solutions
€ 000
Unallocated
Enterprise
Group
totalSolutions
Mobile Solutions
Group total

2009
11,139
10,329
2009
33,101
1,945
54,570
26,106
28,051

2008
10,975
10,223
2008
60,111
2,183
81,309
2,580
4,763

2009
670
672
1,342

2008
1,216
1,296
2,512

Capital expenditure
€ 000
Enterprise Solutions
Mobile Solutions
Group total
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The most significant item within unallocated liabilities consists of a long-term bank loan.

Depreciation and amortisation
€ 000
Enterprise Solutions
Mobile Solutions
Group total

2009
1,945
26,106
28,051

2008
2,183
2,580
4,763

2009
670
672
1,342

2008
1,216
1,296
2,512

2009
110,624
9,711
120,335

2008
108,958
14,245
123,203

Capital expenditure
€ 000
Enterprise Solutions
Mobile Solutions
Group total

Geographical distribution of net sales
€ 000
Finland
Other countries
Total

2. Acquired business operations
Acquired business operations in 2009

No business operations were acquired in the 2009 fiscal year.

Acquired business operations in 2008
Acquisition of Sunrise Resources Ltd
The Group acquired the entire share stock of Sunrise Resources Ltd on 14 January 2008. The acquisition price was
EUR 3.6 million paid as a cash consideration and Digia financed the transaction through its cash reserves. In
addition, the sellers were entitled to an additional purchase price of EUR 0.4 million, which Digia paid in Digia
shares. The additional purchase price was paid in April 2009.
The acquisition is part of Digia's internationalisation strategy and has strengthened the company's current services
with qualified near-shore development services as well as local support for customers operating in the Russian
markets. The acquisition generated EUR 2.4 million of goodwill, in addition to which EUR 0.6 million of the
acquisition price was allocated to acquired customer relationships.

€ 000
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Total assets

Fair value recognised upon
combinationBook value before combination
82
82
636
4
479
479
865
865
2,062
1,430

Income tax liabilities
Other creditors
Total liabilities
Net assets

191
277
468

27
277
304

1,594

1,126

Acquisition cost
Net assets
Goodwill

4,044
-1,594
2,450

Total acquisition cost
Liquid assets of the acquired subsidiary
Cash flow effect

-4,044
865
-3,179

Effect of the acquired business operations on the Group's business
No business operations were acquired in the 2009 fiscal year.

3. Long-term projects
Consolidated net sales include income recognised on long-term projects totalling EUR 15.9 million in 2009 (EUR
13.0 million in 2008). The consolidated income statement includes income recognised on incomplete long-term
projects to the amount of EUR 10.6 million on 31 December 2009 (EUR 11.8 million on 31 December 2008). The
statement of financial position includes advance payments recognised on incomplete long-term projects to the
amount of EUR 0.7 million on 31 December 2009 (EUR 0.5 million on 31 December 2008).

4. One-off expenses
The one-off expenses for the fiscal year 2009 totalled EUR 24.7 million, comprising EUR 23.8 million in a goodwill
writedown and EUR 0.9 million in a restructuring provision. There were no one-off expenses during the fiscal year
2008.

5. Auditors fees
€ 000
Audit
Other statutory duties
Tax counselling
Other services
Total

2009
97
1
7
19
123

2008
91
0
6
31
128
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4. One-off expenses
The one-off expenses for the fiscal year 2009 totalled EUR 24.7 million, comprising EUR 23.8 million in a goodwill
writedown and EUR 0.9 million in a restructuring provision. There were no one-off expenses during the fiscal year
2008.

5. Auditors fees
€ 000
Audit
Other statutory duties
Tax counselling
Other services
Total

2009
97
1
7
19
123

2008
91
0
6
31
128

2009
191
28
220

2008
23
37
60

6. Other operating income
€ 000
Grants
Other income
Total

7. Other operating expenses
The following table presents the most significant items included in other operating expenses:
€ 000
Costs of premises
IT costs
External services
Total

2009
5,996
4,359
808
11,163

2008
5,798
4,409
829
11,036

2009
2,623
2,623

2008
1,989
1,989

2009

2008

Intangible assets
Capitalised development costs
Intangible assets
Total

84
2,477
2,561

155
2,783
2,938

Property, plant and equipment
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Total

7
1,647
1,654

7
1,817
1,824

23,837
23,837
28,051

4,763

2009
59,907
10,242
659
2,827
73,636

2008
58,606
10,242
105
3,306
72,259

8. Product development expenses
€ 000
Product development expenses
Total

9. Depreciation, amortisation and impairment
€ 000
Depreciation and amortisation by asset category

Impairment
Goodwill impairment
Total
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment, total

10. Personnel expenses
€ 000
Wages and salaries
Pension costs, defined-contribution plans
Share-based payments
Other personnel expenses
Total
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Group personnel on average during the period
Group personnel on average during the period
Enterprise Solutions
Mobile Solutions
Group management and administration
Total

2009
711
627
49
1,387

2008
649
612
53
1,314

Information on employee benefits and loans to the management are presented in Note 28, ‘Related party
transactions'.

11. Financial income and expenses
Financial income
€ 000
Capital gains on assets recognised at fair value
through profit and loss
Interest income from cash and cash equivalents
Interest income from accounts receivable
Dividend income
Exchange rate gains
Other financial income
Total

2009

2008

98
4
10
5
2
119

155
444
13
30
214
11
867

2009

2008

1,755
2
4
394
73
214
2,442

3,585
4
12
55
243
3,899

Financial expenses
€ 000
Interest expenses for financing loans valued at accrued acquisition
cost
Interest expenses for accounts payable
Interest expenses for finance lease liabilities
Loan administration fees
Exchange rate losses
Other financial expenses
Total

12. Income taxes
€ 000
Current tax
Taxes from previous periods
Deferred tax
Total

2009
3,507
-40
77
3,545

2008
3,194
-197
2,997

Reconciliation between the tax expenses in the income statement and taxes calculated at the tax rate valid in the
Group's home country (26 per cent):
€ 000
Earnings before tax
Taxes calculated at the domestic corporation tax rate
Deviating tax rates of foreign subsidiaries
Income not subject to tax
Non-deductible expenses
Tax effect of dissolution losses
Other items
Taxes for the period in the income statement
Total
Taxes for the period in the income statement

2009
-10,119

2008
10,406

-2,630
-2
-35
6,253
103
-104
-40
3,545

2,706
7
-108
481
67
206
-362
2,997

3,545

2,997

13. Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the earnings before tax for the accounting period attributable
to the parent company's shareholders by the weighted average of shares outstanding during the accounting
period. Own shares possessed by the company are not included in the calculation of the weighted average of
shares outstanding. The calculation of diluted earnings per share includes consideration of the diluting effect of
stock options on the weighted average number of shares. Stock options have a diluting effect if their exercise price
is lower than the fair value of the share.
2009

2008
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€ 000
Earnings before tax

2009
-10,119

tax rate
dTaxes
i g i acalculated
A N N U A LatRthe
E Pdomestic
O R T 2 0 corporation
09

2008
10,406

Deviating tax rates of foreign subsidiaries
Income not subject to tax
Non-deductible expenses
Tax effect of dissolution losses
Other items
Taxes for the period in the income statement
Total

-2,630
-2
-35
6,253
103
-104
-40
3,545

Taxes for the period in the income statement

3,545

F i n a n2,706
c i a l State m ent
7
-108
481
67
206
-362
2,997
2,997

13. Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the earnings before tax for the accounting period attributable
to the parent company's shareholders by the weighted average of shares outstanding during the accounting
period. Own shares possessed by the company are not included in the calculation of the weighted average of
shares outstanding. The calculation of diluted earnings per share includes consideration of the diluting effect of
stock options on the weighted average number of shares. Stock options have a diluting effect if their exercise price
is lower than the fair value of the share.
2009

2008

-13,664

7,409

20,439,833
20,439,833

20,381,026
20,381,026

-0.67
-0.67

0.36
0.36

Profit for the period attributable to parent company shareholders (€ 000)
Weighted average number of shares during the period
Diluting effect of stock options
Diluted weighted average number of shares during the period
Basic earnings per share (EUR/share)
Diluted earnings per share (EUR/share)

14. Property, plant and equipment

€ 000
Acquisition cost 1 January
Additions
Acquisition of subsidiary
Disposals
Acquisition cost 31 December
Accumulated depreciation and
amortisation 1 January
Depreciation
Impairment
Disposals
Accumulated depreciation and
amortisation 31 December
Book value on 1 January
Book value on 31 December

Land and
water areas
17
17

Buildings
and
structures
162
162

Machinery
and
equipment
11,456
1,148
-3
12,602

Other
tangible
assets
84
84

2009
Total
11,719
1,148
-3
12,865

2008
Total
9,705
1,987
50
-23
11,719

-

-51
-7
-

-8,460
-1,647
-

-83
-

-8,594
-1,654
-

-6,770
-1,824
-

-

-58

-10,107

-83

-10,248

-8,594

17
17

111
104

2,996
2,495

1
1

3,125
2,617

2,935
3,125

Property, plant and equipment include assets leased under finance lease as follows:

2009, € 000
Acquisition cost
Accumulated depreciation
Book value

Land and
water areas
-

Buildings and Machinery and Other tangible
structures
equipment
assets
5,676
-4,455
1,221
-

Total
5,676
-4,455
1,221

2008, € 000
Acquisition cost
Accumulated depreciation
Book value

Land and
water areas
-

Buildings and Machinery and Other tangible
structures
equipment
assets
5,025
-3,524
1,501
-

Total
5,025
-3,524
1,501

15. Intangible assets

€ 000
Acquisition
Capitalised
Additions
Disposals
Acquisition
Acquisition

cost 1 January
development costs
of subsidiary
cost 31 December

Accumulated depreciation and
amortisation 1 January
Depreciation
Impairment
Accumulated depreciation and
amortisation 31 December
Book value on 31 December
Book value on 31 December

Goodwill
89,649
-267
89,382

Development
costs
2,487
2,487

Other
intangible
assets
23,353
197
23,550

2009
Total
115,488
197
-267
115,418

2008
Total
111,615
0
525
-2
3,351
115,488

0
-23,837

-2,404
-84
-

-10,040
-2,477
-

-12,444
-2,560
-23,837

-9,506
-2,938
-

-23,837

-2,487

-12,517

-38,841

-12,444

89,649
65,545

84
0

13,313
11,033

103,044
76,578

102,108
103,044

Annual impairment tests in accordance with IAS 36 standard are applied to goodwill and intangible assets with an
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2009, € 000
Acquisition cost
Accumulated depreciation
Book value

Land and
water areas
-

Buildings and Machinery and Other tangible
structures
equipment
assets
5,676
-4,455
1,221
-

Total
5,676
-4,455
1,221

2008, € 000
Acquisition cost
Accumulated depreciation
Book value

Land and
water areas
-

Buildings and Machinery and Other tangible
assets
structures
equipment
5,025
-3,524
1,501
-

Total
5,025
-3,524
1,501
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15. Intangible assets

€ 000
Acquisition
Capitalised
Additions
Disposals
Acquisition
Acquisition

cost 1 January
development costs
of subsidiary
cost 31 December

Accumulated depreciation and
amortisation 1 January
Depreciation
Impairment
Accumulated depreciation and
amortisation 31 December
Book value on 31 December
Book value on 31 December

Goodwill
89,649
-267
89,382

Development
costs
2,487
2,487

Other
intangible
assets
23,353
197
23,550

2009
Total
115,488
197
-267
115,418

2008
Total
111,615
0
525
-2
3,351
115,488

0
-23,837

-2,404
-84
-

-10,040
-2,477
-

-12,444
-2,560
-23,837

-9,506
-2,938
-

-23,837

-2,487

-12,517

-38,841

-12,444

89,649
65,545

84
0

13,313
11,033

103,044
76,578

102,108
103,044

Annual impairment tests in accordance with IAS 36 standard are applied to goodwill and intangible assets with an
unlimited useful life.
The distribution of goodwill and values subject to testing between divisions on the balance sheet date was as
follows:

€ 000
Enterprise Solutions
Mobile Solutions
Total

Specified
intangible assets
4,230
6,108
10,338

Unallocated
goodwill
43,244
22,301
65,545

Other items
4,129
4,132
8,261

Total value
subject to testing
51,602
32,541
84,143

The goodwill in the Enterprise Solutions segment was mainly associated to the acquisition of Sentera Plc and Digia
Sweden Ab and Samstock Ltd. The goodwill in the Mobile Solutions division was mainly associated with the
combination of Digia Inc. and SysOpen Plc, as well as the acquisition of Yomi Software Ltd and Sunrise Resources
Ltd. Allocated goodwill is presented in the intangible asset group ‘Other intangible assets’ and amortised over a
period of 5-10 years.
The other items include the estimated working capital and fixed assets of the divisions.

Impairment testing

The Group has defined its business segments as cash-generating units (CGU). Goodwill impairment is tested by
comparing the CGU fair value to the book value. The use values are based on the continuous use of an asset as
well as on the financial plans and estimates of the CGU's future development, approved by the relevant CGU
management.
In the 2009 fiscal year, the company recorded a EUR 23.8 million goodwill writedown attributable to the Mobile
Solutions segment. The writedown was based on the company's evaluation of increased long-term risks for the
Mobile Solutions segment, which was carried out according to applicable legislation. The increased risks are due to
pricing pressure generated by continuously increasing competition in contract engineering and, especially, the
transfer of low-grade manufacturing and customers' decision-making functions to low-cost countries. The company
does not expect the Mobile Solutions segment's current target market to grow significantly as a whole from current
levels. The Mobile Solutions business will in future focus on technologies and services in which the company can
maintain at least a reasonable level of profitability.
Present values were calculated for a five-year forecast period using the following assumptions related to the Mobile
Solutions segment: annual growth in net sales 0 per cent; operating profit in 2010 9 per cent and thereafter 8 per
cent; discount rate 14.7 per cent. The assumptions for calculating present values for the Enterprise Solutions
segment for the forecast period did not change and were: annual growth in net sales 3 per cent; operating profit
10 per cent; discount rate 11.2 per cent. Cash flows following the forecast period are estimated by extrapolating
the cash flows, using the assumptions given above.
Net sales growth is reckoned to constitute the most critical factor in calculating the present values of cash flows.
The amount of goodwill for Enterprise Solutions requires average annual growth of two per cent for business
operations and six per cent profitability. For Mobile Solutions, the goodwill requires business to be maintained at
the current level, with 8 per cent profitability.
On the balance sheet date, the Enterprise Solutions segment's use value was EUR 63.5 million higher than the
segment's book value. The Mobile Solutions segment's use value was equal to its book value.

16. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
Changes in deferred taxes during 2009:

€ 000
Deferred tax assets:
Provisions
Confirmed losses
Internal margin on business

Recognised
in income Recognised
1 Jan 2009 statement
in equity

112
1,183

-36
-356

-

Exchange Subsidiaries
rate
acquired/
differences
divested

-

-

31 Dec
2009

76
827
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Present values were calculated for a five-year forecast period using the following assumptions related to the Mobile
Solutions segment: annual growth in net sales 0 per cent; operating profit in 2010 9 per cent and thereafter 8 per
cent; discount rate 14.7 per cent. The assumptions for calculating present values for the Enterprise Solutions
segment for the forecast period did not change and were: annual growth in net sales 3 per cent; operating profit
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the cash flows, using the assumptions given above.
Net sales growth is reckoned to constitute the most critical factor in calculating the present values of cash flows.
The amount of goodwill for Enterprise Solutions requires average annual growth of two per cent for business
operations and six per cent profitability. For Mobile Solutions, the goodwill requires business to be maintained at
the current level, with 8 per cent profitability.
On the balance sheet date, the Enterprise Solutions segment's use value was EUR 63.5 million higher than the
segment's book value. The Mobile Solutions segment's use value was equal to its book value.

16. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
Changes in deferred taxes during 2009:

€ 000
Deferred tax assets:

Recognised
in income Recognised
in equity
1 Jan 2009 statement

Provisions
Confirmed losses
Internal margin on business
transfers
Other items
Total

Exchange Subsidiaries
rate
acquired/
differences
divested

31 Dec
2009

112
1,183

-36
-356

-

-

-

76
827

308
150
1,753

-308
159
-542

-

-

-

0
309
1,212

21
3,027
90
3,138

-21
-589
145
-465

-

-

-

0
2,438
234
2,672

Exchange Subsidiaries
rate
acquired/
differences
divested

31 Dec
2008

Deferred tax liabilities:
Capitalisation of intangible assets
From business combinations
Other items
Total

Changes in deferred taxes during 2008:

€ 000
Deferred tax assets:
Provisions
Confirmed losses
Impairment of intangible assets
Internal margin on business
transfers
Other items
Total

Recognised
in income Recognised
in equity
1 Jan 2008 statement
0
1,589
65

112
-406
-65

-

-

-

112
1,183
0

562
96
2,312

-254
55
-558

-

-

-

308
150
1,753

63
3,308
71
3,442

-42
-428
19
-451

-

-

147
147

21
3,027
90
3,138

Deferred tax liabilities:
Capitalisation of intangible assets
From business combinations
Other items
Total

17. Accounts receiveble and other receivables
€ 000
Accounts receivable and other receivables
Accounts receivable
Security deposit for rental dues
Receivables from customers on long-term projects
Prepayments and accrued income
Other receivables
Accounts receivable and other receivables

2009

2008

16,782
543
1,143
1,360
1,220
21,048

20,980
595
2,826
1,556
25,957

€ 000
Non-due accounts receivable
Accounts receivable due 1-30 days ago
Accounts receivable due 31-60 days ago
Accounts receivable due more than 60 days ago
Total

2009
15,943
660
125
54
16,782

2008
13,849
5,722
907
502
20,980

At the end of the fiscal year 2009, credit loss provisions totalled EUR 0.1 million. At the end of the fiscal year
2008, credit loss provisions amounted to EUR 2.1 million. The book value of accounts receivable and security
deposits for rental dues is a reasonable estimate of their fair value. Their balance sheet values best correspond
with the sum of money that represents the maximum amount of credit risks. Essential items included in
prepayments and accrued income are associated with the accrual of statutory insurance premiums and other
accrued expenses.

18. Cash and cash equivalents
€ 000
Financing assets recognised at fair value through
profit and loss
Mutual funds
Bank accounts
Total

2009

2008

293
10,176
10,469

273
18,606
18,879
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€ 000
Non-due accounts receivable
Accounts receivable due 1-30 days ago
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receivable due 31-60 days ago
Accounts receivable due more than 60 days ago
Total

2009
15,943
660
125
54
16,782

2008
13,849
5,722
F i n a n c 907
ial
502
20,980

State m ent

At the end of the fiscal year 2009, credit loss provisions totalled EUR 0.1 million. At the end of the fiscal year
2008, credit loss provisions amounted to EUR 2.1 million. The book value of accounts receivable and security
deposits for rental dues is a reasonable estimate of their fair value. Their balance sheet values best correspond
with the sum of money that represents the maximum amount of credit risks. Essential items included in
prepayments and accrued income are associated with the accrual of statutory insurance premiums and other
accrued expenses.

18. Cash and cash equivalents
€ 000
Financing assets recognised at fair value through
profit and loss
Mutual funds
Bank accounts
Total

2009

2008

293
10,176
10,469

273
18,606
18,879

€ 000
1 Jan 2008
Increase of share capital
Exercise of stock options
31 Dec 2008

Number of shares
20,853,645
20,853,645

Share capital
2,085
2,085

€ 000
1 Jan 2009
Increase of share capital
Exercise of stock options
31 Dec 2009

Number of shares
20,853 645
20,853 645

Share capital
2,085
2,085

19. Notes on share capital

The maximum number of shares is 48 million (48 million in 2008). The nominal value of each share is EUR 0.1 and
the Group's maximum share capital is EUR 4.8 million (EUR 4.8 million in 2008). All outstanding shares are paid in
full. At the end of the fiscal year, the company held 265,954 own shares, or 1.3 per cent of all shares.
The premium fund comprises the amount paid for shares in excess of the nominal value. The ‘Other reserves’
amount arises from fair valuation of acquired business operations in the consolidated financial statements. The
translation differences reserve comprises translation differences arising from the translation of financial statements
of non-Finnish units. The unrestricted invested shareholders' equity reserve comprises investments similar to
shareholders' equity and the subscription price of shares when a specific decision is made not to enter it in
shareholders' equity.

20. Share-based payments
The Group has had stock option schemes in place since 15 September 1999 and has also offered share-based
bonuses as part of key personnel commitment and incentive scheme as of 31 May 2007. Options granted after
2003 have been recognised in the financial statements for 2005 in accordance with the standard IFRS 2 Sharebased Payment. Stock options expire if they are not exercised during a period separately defined in the option
scheme. Stock options are also lost if the employee resigns from the company before the right is vested.
On 30 September 2009, the Digia Board of Directors decided to offer key personnel an option conversion, such
that one Digia share and a cash amount equalling the value of the share would be provided in exchange for twenty
(20) A options, for four (4) B options and for two and two-thirds (2 2/3) C options. The conversion offer was made
to the holders of warrants under the 2005 scheme. The conversion offer was approved fully, and a total of 276,000
warrants held by key personnel were converted into 51,900 Digia shares and the equivalent cash amount in order
to cover the tax cost of the incentive. The conversion was carried out with existing Digia shares.
At the end of the financial year, all A options in the 2005 scheme had expired. 22,000 B options were held by
previous employees of the company, while all the rest had been returned to the company. All C options had been
returned. The returned options will not be exercised for subscribing shares. The maximum dilution effect of the
remaining warrants was 0.1 per cent on 31 December 2009.
The Group had the stock option schemes described below in the financial year:

Option scheme 2005

The number of warrants under the 2005 stock option scheme totals 900,000, 300,000 of which are marked as
2005A, 300,000 as 2005B and 300,000 as 2005C. The warrants entitle their holders to subscribe a maximum total
of 900,000 Digia Plc shares.
The share subscription price for 2005B warrants is EUR 3.75 (dividend-adjusted) and for 2005C warrants it is EUR
3.78. The 2005A warrants expired on 30 November 2009. On the record date for each distribution of dividends,
the share subscription price based on the stock options will be deducted by the amount of dividends for which the
decision to distribute has been made between the beginning of the price-setting period and the date of
subscription. However, the minimum subscription price will always be the nominal value of the share. The share
subscription period for the 2005A warrants will be between 1 November 2007 and 30 November 2009, for the
2005B warrants between 1 November 2008 and 30 November 2010 and for the 2005C warrants between 1
November 2009 and 30 November 2011. As a result of share subscriptions using warrants 2005A, 2005B and
2005C, the share capital of Digia Plc may increase by a maximum of EUR 90,000, and the number of shares may
increase by a maximum of 900,000 new shares. On 31 December 2009, Digia Plc's wholly owned subsidiary Digia
Partners Oy held a total of 578,000 warrants under the 2005 option scheme.

2009
Maximum number of options
Shares available for subscription per option
Original subscription price *
Dividend adjustment
Subscription price on 31 December 2005

2005A

Warrants 2005
2005B

2005C

300,000
1
€ 4.33
Yes
€ 4.33

300,000
1
€ 3.98
Yes
-

300,000
1
€ 3.93
Yes
-
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2003 have been recognised in the financial statements for 2005 in accordance with the standard IFRS 2 Sharebased Payment. Stock options expire if they are not exercised during a period separately defined in the option
scheme. Stock options are also lost if the employee resigns from the company before the right is vested.
On 30 September 2009, the Digia Board of Directors decided to offer key personnel an option conversion, such
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equalling the value of the share would be provided in exchange
(20) A options, for four (4) B options and for two and two-thirds (2 2/3) C options. The conversion offer was made
to the holders of warrants under the 2005 scheme. The conversion offer was approved fully, and a total of 276,000
warrants held by key personnel were converted into 51,900 Digia shares and the equivalent cash amount in order
to cover the tax cost of the incentive. The conversion was carried out with existing Digia shares.
At the end of the financial year, all A options in the 2005 scheme had expired. 22,000 B options were held by
previous employees of the company, while all the rest had been returned to the company. All C options had been
returned. The returned options will not be exercised for subscribing shares. The maximum dilution effect of the
remaining warrants was 0.1 per cent on 31 December 2009.
The Group had the stock option schemes described below in the financial year:

Option scheme 2005

The number of warrants under the 2005 stock option scheme totals 900,000, 300,000 of which are marked as
2005A, 300,000 as 2005B and 300,000 as 2005C. The warrants entitle their holders to subscribe a maximum total
of 900,000 Digia Plc shares.
The share subscription price for 2005B warrants is EUR 3.75 (dividend-adjusted) and for 2005C warrants it is EUR
3.78. The 2005A warrants expired on 30 November 2009. On the record date for each distribution of dividends,
the share subscription price based on the stock options will be deducted by the amount of dividends for which the
decision to distribute has been made between the beginning of the price-setting period and the date of
subscription. However, the minimum subscription price will always be the nominal value of the share. The share
subscription period for the 2005A warrants will be between 1 November 2007 and 30 November 2009, for the
2005B warrants between 1 November 2008 and 30 November 2010 and for the 2005C warrants between 1
November 2009 and 30 November 2011. As a result of share subscriptions using warrants 2005A, 2005B and
2005C, the share capital of Digia Plc may increase by a maximum of EUR 90,000, and the number of shares may
increase by a maximum of 900,000 new shares. On 31 December 2009, Digia Plc's wholly owned subsidiary Digia
Partners Oy held a total of 578,000 warrants under the 2005 option scheme.

2005A

Warrants 2005
2005B

2005C

300,000
1
€ 4.33
Yes
€ 4.33
€ 4.28
€ 4.20
€ 4.10
expired
1 November 2007
30 November 2009
expired
expired

300,000
1
€ 3.98
Yes
€ 3.98
€ 3.90
€ 3.80
€ 3.75
1 November 2008
30 November 2010
0.9
2

300,000
1
€ 3.93
Yes
€ 3.93
€ 3.83
€ 3.78
1 November 2009
30 November 2011
1.9
no longer binding

Amounts on 1 January 2009
Options granted
Options returned
Options outstanding
Options in reserve

326,000
106,000
220,000
80,000

148,000
55,000
93,000
207,000

60,000
0
60,000
240,000

Changes during the period
Options granted
Options returned

0
123,000

0
71,000

0
60,000

Amounts on 31 December 2009
Options granted
Options returned
Options outstanding
Options in reserve

326,000
229,000
0
0

148,000
126,000
22,000
278,000

60,000
60,000
0
300,000

2009
Maximum number of options
Shares available for subscription per option
Original subscription price *
Dividend adjustment
Subscription price on 31 December 2005
Subscription price on 31 December 2006
Subscription price on 31 December 2007
Subscription price on 31 December 2008
Subscription price on 31 December 2009
Vesting date
Expiry date
Exercise period, years
Persons at end of financial period

* At the end of the fiscal year, the subscription price for warrants in force was determined as follows:
2005A: Trading-weighted average share price on the Helsinki Stock Exchange calculated for the 20 days following
the publication of Digia's Interim Report Q1/2005.
2005B: Trading-weighted average share price on the Helsinki Stock Exchange calculated for the 20 days following
the publication of Digia's Interim Report Q1/2006.
2005C: Trading-weighted average share price on the Helsinki Stock Exchange calculated for the 20 days following
the publication of Digia's Interim Report Q1/2007.
On the recorded date for each distribution of dividends, the share subscription price will be deducted by the
amount of dividends for which the decision to distribute has been made between the beginning of the price-setting
period and the date of subscription.
The following table presents a summary of the number of warrants and subscription prices on 31 December 2009.

Options total

Subscription prices
(weighted)

534,000
139,000
0
395,000
505,000

€ 3.99
€ 4.03
€ 3.97
€ 3.86

Changes during the period
Options granted
Options returned
Shares subscribed using options
Options expired

0
276,000
0
300,000

€ 3.89
€ 4.05

Amounts on 31 December 2009
Options granted

534,000

€ 3.94

2009
Amounts on 1 January 2009
Options granted
Options returned
Shares subscribed using options
Options outstanding
Options in reserve
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the publication of Digia's Interim Report Q1/2006.
2005C: Trading-weighted average share price on the Helsinki Stock Exchange calculated for the 20 days following
the publication of Digia's Interim Report Q1/2007.
On the recorded date for each distribution of dividends, the share subscription price will be deducted by the
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The following table presents a summary of the number of warrants and subscription prices on 31 December 2009.

Options total

Subscription prices
(weighted)

534,000
139,000
0
395,000
505,000

€ 3.99
€ 4.03
€ 3.97
€ 3.86

Changes during the period
Options granted
Options returned
Shares subscribed using options
Options expired

0
276,000
0
300,000

€ 3.89
€ 4.05

Amounts on 31 December 2009
Options granted
Options returned
Shares subscribed using options
Options outstanding
Options in reserve

534,000
415,000
0
22,000
578,000

€ 3.94
€ 3.92
€ 3.77

2009
Amounts on 1 January 2009
Options granted
Options returned
Shares subscribed using options
Options outstanding
Options in reserve

Determination of fair value

The fair value of the options is determined using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. A fair value is determined
for the date of granting the options and charged to personnel expenses over the vesting period. The granting date
is the date of the decision by Board of Directors. The effect of options on the company's earnings in 2009 is EUR
12,509 (2008: EUR 45,563). In addition, an increase in fair value of EUR 85,587 was made during the fiscal year,
caused by the conversion of options into shares according to the share conversion scheme. The cash portion of the
conversion scheme caused expenses of EUR 250,282.
The change to the 2005 stock option scheme was valued using the following assumptions:

Essential assumptions for the Black-Scholes model

Option scheme
change, 2009

Options granted in
2008

0
51,900
3.20
3.89
0.9%
0.9
44.0%
0%

120,000
3.03
3.90
4.1%
3.3
21.0%
0%

3.23
0.29
335,869

0.32
38,611

85,587

12,509

Options granted
Shares granted in conversion
Average share price, €
Subscription price, €
Interest rate, %
Exercise period, years
Volatility, % *
Returned options, %
Fair value of remuneration payable in cash per share at the payment
date, €
B&S value per option, €
Fair value total, €
Expense effect in 2009, handled as shareholders'
equity, €

* Volatility is estimated on the basis of historical variations in the share price based on monthly observations over
a period corresponding to the exercise period.

Comparison data for 2008

The following table presents the situation on 31 December 2008 as comparative data
Option scheme
2008
Amounts on 1 January 2009
Options granted
Options returned
Shares subscribed using options
Options outstanding
Options in reserve
Changes during the period
Options granted
Options returned
Shares subscribed using options
Trading-weighted average price
during subscription period, € *
Options expired
Amounts on 31 December 2009
Options granted
Options returned
Shares subscribed using options
Options outstanding
Options in reserve

Subscription
price €

2003D

2005A

2005B

2005C

Total

158,763
28,845
0
129,918
20,082

326,000
106,000
0
220,000
80,000

88,000
22,000
0
66,000
234,000

0
0
0
0
300,000

572,763
156,845
0
415,918
634,082

€ 4.15
€ 4.16
€ 4.15
€ 3.96

0
0
0

0
0
0

60,000
33,000
0

60,000
0
0

0
33,000
0

€ 3.80
-

3.11
150,000

2.96
0

1.93
0

0

150,000

€ 4.09

expired

326,000
106,000
0
220,000
80,000

148,000
55,000
0
93,000
207,000

60,000
0
0
60,000
240,000

534,000
161,000
0
373,000
527,000

€ 3.99
€ 4.00
€ 3.98
€ 3.86

* Trading-weighted average price of Digia Plc's share from January to October 2008 (2003D) and from January to
December 2008 (2005A and 2005B).

Share-based bonuses

In addition to stock option schemes, the company offers share-based bonuses as part of its key personnel
commitment and incentive scheme. The share-based bonus scheme offers the target group an opportunity to
receive shared in Digia Plc shares as a reward for the achievement of specified goals set for an earning period. The
Board of Directors decides the earning criteria for the scheme and specifies the targets, as well as the maximum
remuneration for the earning period for each person belonging to the target group.
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Options returned
Shares subscribed using options
Trading-weighted average price
during subscription period, € *
Options expired
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Amounts on 31 December 2009
Options granted
Options returned
Shares subscribed using options
Options outstanding
Options in reserve

0
0

0
0

33,000
0

0
0

33,000
0

€ 3.80
-

3.11
150,000

2.96
0

1.93
0

0

150,000

-

expired

326,000
106,000
0
220,000
80,000

148,000
55,000
0
93,000
207,000

60,000
0
0
60,000
240,000

534,000
161,000
0
373,000
527,000

€ 3.99
€ 4.00
€ 3.98
€ 3.86

F i n a n c i a€l 4.09
State m ent

* Trading-weighted average price of Digia Plc's share from January to October 2008 (2003D) and from January to
December 2008 (2005A and 2005B).

Share-based bonuses

In addition to stock option schemes, the company offers share-based bonuses as part of its key personnel
commitment and incentive scheme. The share-based bonus scheme offers the target group an opportunity to
receive shared in Digia Plc shares as a reward for the achievement of specified goals set for an earning period. The
Board of Directors decides the earning criteria for the scheme and specifies the targets, as well as the maximum
remuneration for the earning period for each person belonging to the target group.
On 30 September 2009, the Board of Directors made the following decisions regarding share-based bonus systems
for management and key personnel:
It was decided that the terms of the Chief Executive Officer's 2008 share-based incentive system would be
changed so that in October 2009 the CEO received a bonus equivalent to the value of 100,000 shares, paid 50/50
in shares and cash. This bonus system entirely replaced the 2008 share-based incentive system.
The CEO's new share-based incentive system covers the period 2009 and 2010. It entitles the CEO to a maximum
bonus equal to the value of 160,000 company shares according to the terms of the scheme, based on the
company's EPS. The bonus is payable 50/50 in shares and cash and is made available to the CEO annually after
the financial statements are approved.
In a system directed at key personnel, a maximum bonus totalling the value of 200,000 shares will be payable as
a 50/50 combination of shares and cash. The instalments will be paid in 2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012. The bonus
will be paid annually, without any disposition restrictions, beginning on 30 January 2010, depending on the
fulfilment of certain goals set by the Board and on the condition that the recipient is still employed by the company
on the payment date.
The basic details of the schemes are listed in the table below.

CEO's share-based
bonus in 2009

31 Dec 2009
Granting date
Instrument
Target group
Maximum amount of share-based bonuses *
Beginning of the earning period
End of the earning period

CEO's share-based Key personnel shareincentive system
based incentive
2009-2010
system 2009-2010

30 September 2009
Shares and cash
CEO
100,000
30 September 2009
23 October 2009

30 September 2009
Shares and cash
CEO
160,000
1 October 2009
30 March 2010 /
30 March 2011

-

Earnings per share,
employment
requirement
1.5
1.2
1

Vesting condition
Maximum validity, years
Remaining validity, years
Number of persons (31 December
2009)

0
expired

30 September 2009
Shares and cash
Key personnel
200,000
1 October2009
30 January 2010 /
30 January 2011 /
30 January 2012 /
30 January 2013
Earnings requirement,
employment
requirement
3.3
3.1
31

* In addition to the bonus payment in shares, a cash bonus is paid to cover the cost of taxes and similar expenses.
The items related to share-based incentive systems in 2009 are given in the table below. Because the cash portion
of the bonus payment is also recorded as a share-based expense, the sums below are gross, i.e. the bonuses
include the shares and the equivalent cash sum.

Events in 2009 fiscal year
Gross amounts 1 January 2009 **
Outstanding on 1 Jan
Changes during the period
Granted during the year
Forfeited during the year
Exercised during the year
Expired during the year

CEO's shareKey personnel
CEO's share- based incentive
share-based
based bonus in
system 2009- incentive system
2009
2010
2009-2010

Total

210,000

0

0

210,000

0
110,000
100,000
210,000

160,000
0
0
0

182,000
0
0
0

342,000
110,000
100,000
210,000

0
0

160,000
160,000

182,000
182,000

342,000
342,000

Gross amounts 31 December 2009 **
Outstanding on 31 Dec
Available for exercising on 31 Dec

** The amounts include the cash portion (in shares) granted according to the terms of the incentive scheme.

Expense effect of share-based incentive schemes on 2009 income statement

Effect on earnings and financial
position
Share-based payment expense for
the fiscal year, €

CEO's sharebased bonus in
2008

CEO's sharebased bonus in
2009

CEO's sharebased incentive
system 20092010

Key personnel
share-based
incentive system
2009-2010

58,256

306,294

98,966

112,574
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Events in 2009 fiscal year
Gross amounts 1 January 2009 **
Outstanding on 1 Jan

dChanges
iGranted
g i a A during
Nduring
N U A the
Lthe
Rperiod
Eyear
PORT 2009
Forfeited during the year
Exercised during the year
Expired during the year

2009

2010

2009-2010

Total

210,000

0

0

210,000

0
110,000
100,000
210,000

160,000
0
0
0

182,000
0
0
0

110,000
100,000
210,000

0
0

160,000
160,000

182,000
182,000

342,000
342,000

Gross amounts 31 December 2009 **
Outstanding on 31 Dec
Available for exercising on 31 Dec

F i n a n c i342,000
a l State m ent

** The amounts include the cash portion (in shares) granted according to the terms of the incentive scheme.

Expense effect of share-based incentive schemes on 2009 income statement

Effect on earnings and financial
position
Share-based payment expense for
the fiscal year, €

CEO's sharebased bonus in
2008

CEO's sharebased bonus in
2009

CEO's sharebased incentive
system 20092010

Key personnel
share-based
incentive system
2009-2010

58,256

306,294

98,966

112,574

Comparison data for 2008
Effect on earnings and financial position
Share-based payment expense for the fiscal year, €
Share-based payment expense for the fiscal year, shareholders' equity, €
Liabilities from share-based payments on 31 December 2008, €

CEO's share-based bonus in 2008
59,399
36,478
22,921

21. Provisions
Changes in provisions during 2009:

€ 000
1 Jan 2009
Increase in provisions
Provisions used
Reversals of unused provisions
31 Dec 2009

Restructuring
provision
0
895
895

Unprofitable
agreements
432
157
-432
157

Total
432
1,052
-432
1,052

Restructuring
provision
0
0

Unprofitable
agreements
0
432
432

Total
0
432
432

Changes in provisions during 2008:

€ 000
1 Jan 2008
Increase in provisions
Provisions used
Reversals of unused provisions
31 Dec 2008

Restructuring provision

The restructuring provision is associated with restructuring of entities in connection with acquisitions and the
reorganisation of unprofitable business operations.
To improve its operating conditions, the company launched measures in 2009 for rationalising its site network in
line with market requirements, and concentrating its expertise into fewer but larger units. In this way, customers'
needs will be met more effectively. The measures encompassed the closure of the company's offices in Kuopio,
Turku, Lahti and Vaasa, and the reduction of personnel in certain parts of the Pori unit. Due to these measures,
the company made an operational restructuring provision of EUR 0.9 million in its financial statements.

Unprofitable agreements

A loss provision is created for fixed-price projects if it becomes apparent that the completion of the project will
require significantly more work input than has been estimated in connection with selling the project and can be
invoiced from the customer on the basis of the agreement.
On the balance sheet date 31 December 2009, there were two fixed-price projects for which loss provisions had
been recorded on the basis of remaining work.

22. Loans from financial institutions

€ 000
Non-current
Bank loan
Subordinated loan
Finance lease liabilities
Total
Current
Bank loan
Subordinated loan
Finance lease liabilities
Total
Total

2009
Fair values

2008
Fair values

2009
Balance sheet values

2008
Balance sheet values

20,081
79
478
20,639

146
679
825

23,000
89
513
23,601

170
765
935

5,797
73
716
6,586
27,225

51,132
216
742
52,090
52,915

6,000
82
745
6,827
30,429

55,000
242
772
56,015
56,950

The fair value of loans has been calculated by discounting the loan capital on the balance sheet date using a
discount rate of 8.86%, which has been determined with regard to the industry's general risk level.
On 3 February 2009 Digia signed a syndicated loan agreement that replaced the company's prior loans in their
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On the balance sheet date 31 December 2009, there were two fixed-price projects for which loss provisions had
been recorded on the basis of remaining work.

22. Loans from financial institutions

€ 000
Non-current
Bank loan
Subordinated loan
Finance lease liabilities
Total
Current
Bank loan
Subordinated loan
Finance lease liabilities
Total
Total

2009
Fair values

2008
Fair values

2009
Balance sheet values

2008
Balance sheet values

20,081
79
478
20,639

146
679
825

23,000
89
513
23,601

170
765
935

5,797
73
716
6,586
27,225

51,132
216
742
52,090
52,915

6,000
82
745
6,827
30,429

55,000
242
772
56,015
56,950

The fair value of loans has been calculated by discounting the loan capital on the balance sheet date using a
discount rate of 8.86%, which has been determined with regard to the industry's general risk level.
On 3 February 2009 Digia signed a syndicated loan agreement that replaced the company's prior loans in their
entirety. The loan agreement is financed by Pohjola Bank, Nordea Bank and Varma. In addition to a three-year
bank-financed package of EUR 42 million, the package included EUR 8 million in re-borrowing of pension
contributions. There is also a maximum EUR 5 million credit limit. As a part of the financing package, the company
committed to covenants concerning the maintenance of the company's financial standing and liquidity. Loan
covenant terms related to this package were modified during the reporting period to stipulate that regardless of
the earnings reported for 2009, the company is allowed to distribute a maximum of EUR 3 million in dividends in
2010. In future years, the maximum dividend sum will be 30 per cent of the previous year's net operating profit.
During the financial year, the company repaid EUR 26.3 million in loans, reducing its interest-bearing liabilities to
EUR 29.0 million. The loans have floating interest rates tied to Euribor, plus a margin. The covenants for the loans
are linked to certain financial indicators. The average interest rate of the loans in 2009 was 3.4% (5.8% in 2008).
The shares of Digia Finland Ltd and Digia Financial Software Ltd are pledged as collateral for the loans.
A subordinated loan has been granted by TEKES for product development. The loan has a fixed interest rate, which
ranged between 1.00% and 4.00% until 31 December 2009. The effective interest rates on finance lease liabilities
during the fiscal year was 4.99% (5.04% in 2008).
Interest-bearing liabilities fall due as follows:
Year, € 000
2009
2010
2011
2012
Later
Total

2009

2008
56,014
822
57
57
56,950

6,827
6,447
15,640
1,515
30,429

The tables below describe agreement-based maturity analysis results for 2009 and the 2008 comparison period.
The figures are undiscounted and include interest payments and the repayment of loan capital:
€ 000
31 Dec 2009
Bank loans
Subordinated loans
Finance lease liabilities
Total

€ 000
31 Dec 2008
Bank loans
Subordinated loans
Finance lease liabilities
Total

Balance sheet
values
29,000
170
1,259
30,429

Cash flow less than 1 year
30,715
6,872
174
84
1,311
785
32,200
7,741

1-2 years
6,675
45
410
7,130

2-5 years
17,169
45
116
17,730

Balance sheet
values
55,000
412
1,537
56,950

Cash flow less than 1 year
57,658
57,658
434
247
1,575
787
59,667
58,692

1-2 years

2-5 years

60
789
849

127
127
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23. Due dates of financial lease liabilities
€ 000
Finance lease liabilities, total of minimum lease
payments
Within one year
Within more than one but less than five years
After more than five years
Finance lease liabilities, present value of
minimum lease payments
Within one year
Within more than one but less than five years
After more than five years
Financial expenses to be accrued in the future
Total amount of finance lease liabilities

2009

2008

785
525
-

809
789
-

705
437
-

756
765
-

51

77

1,311

1,537

The finance leases concern IT and office equipment and have durations of two to three years.

24. Non-interest bearing liabilities
€ 000
Non-current
Deferred tax liabilities
Total

2009

2008

2,672
2,672

3,138
3,138

Current
Accounts payable
Total

1,575
1,575

1,668
1,668

1,400
11,098
1,052
551
5,793
19,894
24,141

460
10,686
432
2,083
5,892
19,553
24,359

Other non-interest bearing current liabilities
Advance payments received
Accrued expenses
Provisions
Income tax liabilities
Other liabilities
Total
Total non-interest bearing liabilities

The book value of non-interest bearing current liabilities represents a reasonable estimate of their fair value.
Material items included in accrued expenses arise from the accrual of holiday pay, as well as accrued provisions for
salaries and fees.

25. Operating leases
Minimum lease payments on the basis of other non-cancellable leases:
€ 000
Within one year
Within more than one but less than five years
After more than five years
Total

2009
5,053
2,477
7,530

2008
4,317
2,134
6,451

The Group leases all of its production facilities and office premises. The average duration of the leases is three to
five years, and they normally include the option of extension after the original date of expiry. The Group has also
leased motor vehicles on maintenance lease agreements. The normal duration of maintenance lease agreements is
three years.

26. Contingent liabilities
€ 000
Collateral pledged for own commitments
Business mortgages granted
Other
Total

2009

2008

0
905
905

3,067
1,029
4,096

Other contingent liabilities are associated with guarantee deposits or are units in fixed-income mutual funds
pledged as collateral for the credit limit. The credit limit is used as the collateral for rents on premises.
Furthermore, the item includes a guarantee deposit pledged as collateral.
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€ 000
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Within more than one but less than five years
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2009
5,053
2,477
7,530

2008
4,317
2,134
F i n a n c i a -l
6,451

State m ent

The Group leases all of its production facilities and office premises. The average duration of the leases is three to
five years, and they normally include the option of extension after the original date of expiry. The Group has also
leased motor vehicles on maintenance lease agreements. The normal duration of maintenance lease agreements is
three years.

26. Contingent liabilities
€ 000
Collateral pledged for own commitments
Business mortgages granted
Other
Total

2009

2008

0
905
905

3,067
1,029
4,096

Other contingent liabilities are associated with guarantee deposits or are units in fixed-income mutual funds
pledged as collateral for the credit limit. The credit limit is used as the collateral for rents on premises.
Furthermore, the item includes a guarantee deposit pledged as collateral.

27. The group's shares and holdings
Group companies
Digia Plc
Digia Estonia Oü *
Digia Financial Software Oy
Digia Finland Oy
Digia Hong Kong Ltd *
Digia Service Oy
Digia Software (Chengdu) Co. Ltd
Digia Sweden Ab
OOO Digia RUS
Sunrise Resources Oy
Digia Partners Oy *
Microext Oy *

Domicile
Helsinki
Tallinn
Jyväskylä
Helsinki
Hong Kong
Jyväskylä
Chengdu
Stockholm
St. Petersburg
Helsinki
Helsinki
Helsinki

Home country
Finland
Estonia
Finland
Finland
China
Finland
China
Sweden
Russia
Finland
Finland
Finland

Share of
ownership
Parent company
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

Share of votes
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

* The companies are not engaged in business operations.
Other shares and holdings
Keimola Golf Club Oy
Kiinteistö Oy Rukan Kuukkeli
Kytäjä Golf Oy
Vierumäki Golf Oy
Vierumäki Golf Club Oy
Vierumäen Loma-aika Oy
Vierumäen Kuntoharju Oy
Rikunniemen Huolto Oy
Tahko Golf Club Oy
Tahkovuorenpeikko Oy
Other
Total

€ 000
7
62
39
17
35
138
270
6
39
11
3
627

28. Related party transactions
Two parties are considered related if one party can exercise control or significant power in decision-making
associated with the other party's finances and business operations. The Group's related parties include the parent
company and subsidiaries, in addition to the members of the Board of Directors and the Management Team.
Remuneration paid to the CEO and Group management during the financial period, including fringe benefits, was
as follows:
€ 000
Salaries and other short-term employee benefits

2009
2,079

2008
1,226

The salaries and fees paid in 2008 to the CEO and members of the Board of Directors were as follows:

Sivonen Pekka
Kyttälä Pertti
Karvinen Kari
Mehtälä Martti
Mäkijärvi Heikki
Pasanen Jari
Varelius Juha
Total

Chairman of the Board of Directors
Vice Chairman of the Board
Member of the Board
Member of the Board
Member of the Board
Member of the Board
CEO

€ 000
209
45
33
34
26
26
846
1,220

During the 2009 fiscal year, the Board decided to terminate the management's stock option schemes and replace
them with share-based incentive schemes. The incentive schemes are described in Note 20 Share-based payments
and in the separate report on corporate governance. Transactions related to the sale of services to related parties
totalled EUR 8,400 (0 in 2008). Transactions associated with the purchase of goods or services totalled EUR
14,700 (EUR 19,700 in 2008). The Group has no related-party loans.

29. Management of financing risks
Digia Plc's internal and external financing and the management of financing risks is concentrated in the finance
function of the Group's parent company. The function is responsible for the Group's liquidity, sufficiency of
financing, and the management of interest rate and currency risk. The Group is exposed to several financing risks
in its normal course of business. The objective of the Group's risk management is to minimise the adverse effects
of changes in the financial markets on the Group's earnings. The primary types of financing risks are interest rate
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Chairman of the Board of Directors
Vice Chairman of the Board
Member of the Board
Member of the Board
Member of the Board
Member of the Board
CEO

During the 2009 fiscal year, the Board decided to terminate the management's stock option schemes and replace
them with share-based incentive schemes. The incentive schemes are described in Note 20 Share-based payments
and in the separate report on corporate governance. Transactions related to the sale of services to related parties
totalled EUR 8,400 (0 in 2008). Transactions associated with the purchase of goods or services totalled EUR
14,700 (EUR 19,700 in 2008). The Group has no related-party loans.

29. Management of financing risks
Digia Plc's internal and external financing and the management of financing risks is concentrated in the finance
function of the Group's parent company. The function is responsible for the Group's liquidity, sufficiency of
financing, and the management of interest rate and currency risk. The Group is exposed to several financing risks
in its normal course of business. The objective of the Group's risk management is to minimise the adverse effects
of changes in the financial markets on the Group's earnings. The primary types of financing risks are interest rate
risk, credit risk and funding risk. The general principles of risk management are approved by the Board of
Directors, and the Group's finance function together with the business segments is responsible for their practical
implementation.

Foreign exchange risks

The Group is not significantly exposed to foreign exchange risk in its operations. The Group's key foreign exchange
risks involve the Swedish krona, Russian rouble and Chinese yuan. The Group has currency holdings of EUR 3.4
million through its Swedish, Russian and Chinese subsidiaries, which entails an exchange risk when the
investments are converted into euro. The Group has not hedged these investments. In the financial statements,
accounts receivable denominated in foreign currency comprised EUR 0.7 million in receivables in Swedish krona.
Accounts payable denominated in foreign currency were very small. The most significant currency risks relating to
accounts receivable and accounts payable can be managed by means of forward foreign exchange contracts when
necessary. At the end of the fiscal year 2009, the company had no such forward contract in force.

Interest rate risks

The Group's interest rate risk is primarily associated with a long-term bank loan that has an interest rate linked to
Euribor rates. Changes in market interest rates have a direct effect on the Group's future interest payments.
During the financial period 2009, the interest rate on the long-term bank loan varied between 2.3% and 4.6%
(between 4.6% and 6.2% in 2008). The impact of a +/- 1% change in the loan's interest rate is EUR 0.3 million
per annum. The Group's money market investments are a source of interest rate risk, but the overall impact of
these investments is negligible. Interest rate developments are monitored systematically in different bodies within
the company, and possible interest rate hedges will be made with the appropriate instruments.

Credit risks

The Group's customers are mostly well-known Finnish and foreign companies with well-established credit, and thus
the Group has no significant credit risks. The Group's policy defines creditworthiness requirements for customers,
investment transactions and counterparties. Services and products are only sold to companies with a good credit
rating. The counterparties in investment transactions are companies with a good credit rating. Credit risks
associated with commercial operations are primarily the responsibility of operational units. The parent company's
finance function provides customer financing services in a centralised manner and ensures that the principles of
the financing policy are observed with regard to terms of payment and collateral required. At the end of the fiscal
year 2009, credit loss provisions totalled EUR 0.1 million. In 2009, the Group recorded credit losses totalling EUR
2.1 million, of which EUR 1.8 million was related to the bankruptcy of UIQ Technologies Ab. The maturity analysis
of accounts receivable for 2009 and 2008 is presented in Note 16.

Liquidity risk

The Group aims to continuously estimate and monitor the amount of financing required for business operations in
order to maintain sufficient liquid funds for financing operations and repaying loans falling due. The availability and
flexibility of financing is ensured by maintaining an unused credit facility and using several banks for financing. The
amount of unwithdrawn standby credit on 31 December 2009 was EUR 5.0 million. The Group maintains its
immediate liquidity with the help of cash management solutions such as Group accounts and credit facilities at
banks. Cash and cash equivalents on 31 December 2009 totalled EUR 10.5 million. An agreement-based maturity
analysis on discounted equity and interest payments for the reporting periods 2009 and 2008 is presented in Note
21.

Management of the capital structure

The Group's capital management aims at supporting company business by means of optimal management of the
capital structure, ensuring normal operating conditions and increasing shareholder value with a view to achieving
the best possible profit. At the end of the period, the Group's interest-bearing net liabilities were EUR 19,960,000
(EUR 38,071,000 at year-end 2008). When calculating gearing, the interest-bearing net liabilities are divided by
shareholders' equity. Gearing includes interest-bearing net liabilities less cash and cash equivalents. Interestbearing net liabilities have primarily been used for financing the Group's company acquisitions, and at the end of
the reporting period, gearing stood at 34% (53% in 2008).
The share of liabilities of total shareholders' equity on 31 December 2009 and 31 December 2008 was as follows:
€ 000
Interest-bearing liabilities
Cash and cash equivalents
Interest-bearing net liabilities
Total shareholders' equity
Gearing, %

2009
30,429
10,469
19,960
58,184
34%

2008
56,950
18,879
38,071
72,083
53%

30. The group's key financial ratios
€ 000
Scope of operations
Net sales, € 000
- change on previous year, %
Gross capital expenditure, € 000
- % of net sales
Capitalisation for research and development
*

2009

2008

2007

2006

2005

120,335
-2%
1,342
1%
-

123,203
16%
2,512
2%

105,839
25%
1,979
2%

84,968
40%
1,876
2%

60,525
131%
2,288
4%

-

-

256

1,464

60

shareholders' equity. Gearing includes interest-bearing net liabilities less cash and cash equivalents. Interestbearing net liabilities have primarily been used for financing the Group's company acquisitions, and at the end of
the reporting period, gearing stood at 34% (53% in 2008).
The share of liabilities of total shareholders' equity on 31 December 2009 and 31 December 2008 was as follows:
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€ 000
Interest-bearing liabilities
Cash and cash equivalents
Interest-bearing net liabilities
Total shareholders' equity
Gearing, %

2009
30,429
10,469
19,960
58,184
34%

2008
56,950
18,879
38,071
72,083
53%

30. The group's key financial ratios
€ 000
Scope of operations
Net sales, € 000
- change on previous year, %
Gross capital expenditure, € 000
- % of net sales
Capitalisation for research and development
*
- % of net sales
Number of personnel, 31 December
Average number of personnel
Profitability
Operating profit, € 000
- % of net sales
Net profit, € 000
- % of net sales
Return on equity, %
Return on investment, %
Financing and financial standing
Loans from financial institutions, € 000
Cash and cash equivalents, € 000
Gearing, %
Equity ratio, %
Cash flow from operations, € 000
Dividends (paid), € 000
Earnings per share, €, basic
Earnings per share, €, diluted
Equity per share
Dividend per share**
Dividend payout ratio **
Effective dividend yield **
Price/earnings ratio (P/E)
Lowest share price, €
Highest share price, €
Average share price, €
Market capitalisation, € 000
Trading volume, shares
Trading volume, %

2009

2008

2007

2006

2005

120,335
-2%
1,342
1%
-

123,203
16%
2,512
2%

105,839
25%
1,979
2%

84,968
40%
1,876
2%

60,525
131%
2,288
4%

0%
1,471
1,387

0%
1,337
1,314

0%
1,155
1,116

256
0%
1,087
981

1,464
2%
793
731

-7,796
-6%
-13,664
-11%
-21%
-7%

13,437
11%
7,409
6%
11%
11%

11,080
10%
5,871
6%
9%
9%

8,354
10%
4,867
6%
8%
9%

4,229
7%
2,355
4%
5%
6%

30,429
10,469
34%
52%
20,232
1,025
-0.67
-0.67
2.79
0.14
4%
1.39
3.88
2.72
71,528
9,123,589
45%

56,950
18,879
53%
47%
15,473
2,041
0.36
0.36
3.46
0.05
14%
3%
5.17
1.73
3.35
2.83
38,788
7,321,002
36%

56,413
11,739
65%
47%
6,157
1,625
0.29
0.29
3.32
0.10
35%
3%
10.39
2.93
4.26
3.77
61,079
9,583,795
47%

56,664
11,506
72%
44%
5,756
930
0.25
0.25
3.10
0.08
32%
2%
13.70
3.00
4.97
3.75
69,669
13,899,149
71%

26,055
12,326
26%
56%
5,691
1,020
0.14
0.14
2.83
0.05
35%
1%
33.07
3.43
4.93
4.36
85,170
14,524,798
87%

* In connection with the acquisition of Digia Inc. in 2005, the consolidated balance sheet includes EUR 0.9 million
of capitalised product development costs.
** Digia Plc's Board of Directors will propose to the Annual General Meeting that the Board of Directors be
authorised to decide on dividend distribution for 2009, with the maximum dividend being EUR 0.14 per share, and
that the authorisation be valid until the next Annual General Meeting.
The weighted average number of shares during the accounting period, adjusted for share issues, was 20,853,645.
The number of shares at the end of the accounting period, adjusted for dilution, was 20,853,645. The number of
shares outstanding at the end of the accounting period was 20,587,691. At the end of the fiscal year 2009, the
company held 129,964 own shares. The company has financed the purchase of 300,000 own shares for use in the
incentive schemes for key personnel. At the end of the review period Evli Bank held 135,990 shares.
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Calculation of Financial Ratios
Return on investment (ROI), %:
Profit or loss before extraordinary items and taxes + interest and other financing costs x 100
Balance sheet total - non-interest bearing liabilities
(average)
Return on equity (ROE), %:
Profit or loss before extraordinary items and taxes - taxes x 100
Shareholders' equity + minority interest (average)
Equity ratio, %:
Shareholders' equity + minority interest
Balance sheet total - advance payments
received
Earnings per share:
Earnings before extraordinary items and taxes - taxes +/- minority interest
Average number of shares during the period, adjusted for share-issues
Dividend per share:
Total dividend
Number of shares at the end of the period, adjusted for share issues
Dividend payout ratio, %:
Dividend per share
Earnings per share
Gearing:
Loans from financial institutions - cash, bank receivables and financial securities
Shareholders' equity
Effective dividend yield, %:
Dividend per share
Last trading price for the period, adjusted for share issues
Price/earnings ratio (P/E):
Last trading price for the period, adjusted for share issues
Earnings per share
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Parent Company's Income Statement (FAS)
€

Note

1 Jan-31 Dec 2009

1 Jan-31 Dec 2008

Net sales

1

8,277,619.00

7,974,743.00

Other operating income
Personnel expenses
Depreciation, amortisation and writedowns
Other operating expenses

2
3
4
5

21,905.00
-4,537,220.03
-853,996.90
-2,993,412.43
-8,362,724.36

29,772.10
-3,955,620.08
-235,479.53
-3,232,358.95
-7,393,686.46

-85,105.36

581,056.54

-3,016,448.01

-4,612,631.08

-3,101,553.37

-4,031,574.54

8,600,000.00

7,200,000.00

5,498,446.63

3,168,425.46

-1,570,680.66

-980,804.43

3,927,765.97

2,187,621.03

Operating profit
Financial income and expenses

6

Earnings before extraordinary items and taxes
Extraordinary items
Earnings before tax
Income taxes
Net profit

7

The Parent Company's Financial Statement is available in its entirety on www.digia.com.
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Parent Company's Balance Sheet (FAS)
€

Note

31 Dec 2009

31 Dec 2008

421,224.63
777.51
422,002.14

612,018.93
2,332.58
614,351.51

16,818.79
103,846.99
79,925.06
200,590.84

16,818.79
110,440.45
122,123.00
249,382.24

114,078,367.38
606,292.32
114,684,659.70

114,942,032,98
606,292.32
115,548,325.30

115,307,252.68

116,412,059.05

9,430,272.94
276,800.10
261,815.24
9,968,888.28
8,345,559.84
18,314,448.12
133,621,700.80

11,490,973.05
329,991.50
328,021.81
12,148,986.36
540,131.42
12,689,117.78
129,101,176.83

31 Dec 2009

31 Dec 2008

2,085,364.50
7,899,485.80
35,447,817.82
2,177,767.16
3,927,765.97
51,538,201.25

2,085,364.50
7,899,485.80
34,938,181.34
800,916.74
2,187,621.03
47,911,569.41

18,000,000.00
18,000,000.00

-

161,510.01
4,000,000.00
58,489,943.46
707,874.37
724,171.71
64,083,499.55
82,083,499.55
133,621,700.80

90,739.37
55,000,000.00
22,970,951.53
2,133,250.15
994,666.37
81,189,607.42
81,189,607.42
129,101,176.83

ASSETS
FIXED ASSETS
Intangible assets
Intangible rights
Other long-term expenses

8

Tangible assets
Land and water areas
Buildings and structures
Machinery and equipment

9

Investments
Shares in Group companies
Other shares and holdings

10

Total fixed assets
CURRENT ASSETS
Current receivables
Receivables from Group companies
Other receivables
Prepayments and accrued income

11

Cash and cash equivalents
Total current assets
Total assets
€

Note

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Shareholders' equity attributable to parent
company shareholders
Share capital
Premium fund
Unrestricted invested shareholders' equity reserve
Retained earnings
Net profit
Total shareholders' equity

12

LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Loans from financial institutions

13

Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Interest-bearing liabilities
Liabilities to Group companies
Other liabilities
Accrued expenses

14

Total liabilities
Total shareholders' equity and liabilities

The Parent Company's Financial Statement is available in its entirety on www.digia.com.
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Signatures to the Board's Report and Financial
Statements
Helsinki, 3 February 2010

Pekka Sivonen
Chairman of the Board of Directors

Pertti Kyttälä

Martti Mehtälä

Heikki Mäkijärvi

Kari Karvinen

Jari Pasanen

Juha Varelius
CEO

Auditor's Note

A report of the audit has been submitted today.

Helsinki, 3rd of February 2010

Ernst & Young Oy
Authorised Public Accountants
Heikki Ilkka
Authorised Public Accountant
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Auditor's report
To the Annual General Meeting of Digia Oyj
We have audited the accounting records, the financial statements, the report of the Board of Directors, and the
administration of Digia Oyj for the year ended on 31 December, 2009. The financial statements comprise the
consolidated balance sheet, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity, cash flow
statement and notes to the consolidated financial statements, as well as the parent company's balance sheet,
income statement, cash flow statement and notes to the financial statements.

The responsibility of the Board of Directors and the Managing Director

The Board of Directors and the Managing Director are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements
and the report of the Board of Directors and for the fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the EU, as well as for the fair
presentation of the financial statements and the report of the Board of Directors in accordance with laws and
regulations governing the preparation of the financial statements and the report of the Board of Directors in
Finland. The Board of Directors is responsible for the appropriate arrangement of the control of the company's
accounts and finances, and the Managing Director shall see to it that the accounts of the company are in
compliance with the law and that its financial affairs have been arranged in a reliable manner.

Auditor's responsibility

Our responsibility is to perform an audit in accordance with good auditing practice in Finland, and to express an
opinion on the parent company's financial statements, on the consolidated financial statements and on the report
of the Board of Directors based on our audit. Good auditing practice requires that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements and
the report of the Board of Directors are free from material misstatement and whether the members of the Board of
Directors of the parent company and the Managing Director have complied with the Limited Liability Companies
Act.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements and the report of the Board of Directors. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements or of the
report of the Board of Directors, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements and
the report of the Board of Directors in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements and the report of the Board of Directors.
The audit was performed in accordance with good auditing practice in Finland. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion on the consolidated financial statements

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance, and cash flows of the group in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as
adopted by the EU.

Opinion on the company's financial statements and the report of the Board of Directors

In our opinion, the financial statements and the report of the Board of Directors give a true and fair view of both
the consolidated and the parent company's financial performance and financial position in accordance with the
laws and regulations governing the preparation of the financial statements and the report of the Board of Directors
in Finland. The information in the report of the Board of Directors is consistent with the information in the financial
statements.
In Helsinki on February 3, 2010
Ernst & Young Oy
Authorized Public Accountant Firm
Heikki Ilkka
Authorized Public Accountant
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Information for Shareholders
The purpose of Digia’s investor relations is to provide capital markets with open
and reliable information on the company and its operating environment in order
to give market participants a factual overview of Digia as an investment.
Digia Plc shares are quoted on the Main List of the NASDAQ OMX Helsinki Ltd, in
the Information Technology sector, Small Cap segment.

Investor relations
CFO Kjell Lindqvist
Hiomotie 19, FI-00380 Helsinki
Tel. +358 10 313 3000
kjell.lindqvist@digia.com
Communications Manager Camilla Lindfors
Hiomotie 19, FI-00380 Helsinki
Tel. +358 10 313 3000
camilla.lindfors@digia.com

Financial releases 2010
During the financial year 2010, Digia Plc will publish the following financial
releases in Finnish and in English:
• Q1 Interim Report: Thursday 29 April 2010 at 9:00 a.m.
• Q2 Interim Report: Thursday 12 August 2010 at 9:00 a.m.
• Q3 Interim Report: Thursday 28 October 2010 at 9:00 a.m.
Digia Plc will hold its Annual General Meeting for 2010 on Wednesday, 3 March
2010, in Helsinki starting at 10:00 a.m.

To order Annual Reports and other publications, please contact
Digia Plc, Corporate Communications
Hiomotie 19, 00380 Helsinki
Tel. +358 10 313 3000
invest@digia.com
The Annual Report, interim reports, and stock exchange releases are available on
our website at www.digia.com
The Annual Report 2009 has been published only in eletronic form, but it can
also be ordered as a printed PDF version.

Change of address
We kindly ask shareholders to notify their respective book-entry securities
registers of any change of address.
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Share capital and shares
The nominal share price is EUR 0.10. On 31st of December 2009, the total number of Digia shares was
20,853,645.
According to the Finnish Central Securities Depository Ltd, on 31st of December 2009 Digia had 3,974
shareholders.

The ten major shareholders were
Shareholder
Sivonen Pekka
Ingman Group Ab
Hallikainen Jyrki
Karvinen Kari
Savolainen Matti
Varma Mutual Pension Insurance Company
Veikko Laine Oy
Nordea Bank Finland Plc (Nominee-registered)
Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken AB
(Nominee-registered)
Etra Trading

Number of shares
2,997,613
2,200,000
2,135,463
1,586,309
1,320,659
750,000
581,050
340,238

Shares and votes
14.37%
10.55%
10.24%
7.61%
6.33%
3.60%
2.79%
1.63%

271,972

1.30%

200,000

0.96%

Distribution of holdings by number of shares held on 31 December 2009

Number of shares
1-100
101-1,000
1,001-10,000
10,001-100,000
100,001-1,000,000
1,000,001-3,000,000

Percentage of
holdings
20.3%
55.1%
21.6%
2.4%
0.5%
0.1%

Percentage of
shares and votes
0.3%
5.0%
11.6%
12.9%
21.1%
49.1%

Percentage of
holdings
5.2%
0.3%
0.1%
0.3%
93.6%
0.5%

Percentage of
shares
19.5%
4.8%
3.7%
0.4%
70.2%
1.4%

Distribution of shareholding by sector on 31 December 2009

Business
Finance and insurance
Public corporations
Non-profit organisations
Households
Foreign holdings
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Investor relations
Contact information
CFO Kjell Lindqvist
Hiomotie 19, FI-00380 Helsinki
Tel. +358 10 313 3000
kjell.lindqvist@digia.com
Communications Manager Camilla Lindfors
Hiomotie 19, FI-00380 Helsinki
Tel. +358 10 313 3000
camilla.lindfors@digia.com

The annual reports and other publications
Digia Plc, Communication
Hiomotie 19, FI-00380 Helsinki
Tel. +358 10 313 3000
invest@digia.com
The Annual Report, interim reports and stock exchange releases are also available on our website at
www.digia.com
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